FOOD PLANT PREFERENCES OF GRASSHOPPERS (ORTHOPTERA: ACRIDIDAE) OF SELECTED PLANTED PASTURES IN EASTERN KANSAS ,

763 by

JAMES DALE LAMBLEY

B. S., Kansas State University, Manhattan, 1965

A THESIS

submitted in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree

MASTER OF SCIENCE

Department of Entomology

Kansas State University Manhattan, Kansas

Approved by: Major Professor

LP 268 74 1967 L27 :.2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
REVIEW OF LITERATURE	3
MATERIALS AND METHODS	9
Study Area	9
Field and Laboratory Studies	18
RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	21
Acridinae	119
Oedipodinae	122
Cyrtacanthacridinae	125
SUMMARY	128
LITERATURE CITED	131
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS	
APPENDIX	139

ii

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this study, near Manhattan, Kansas during 1965 and 1966, was to increase knowledge of the feeding and behavior of grasshoppers in planted (tame) pastures. Emphasis was placed on the feeding habits of the more common species.

Grasshoppers have long been considered serious plant pests in the Great Plains area of the United States. Loss in production potential of rangelands (including pasture grass and other forage) has been estimated to be \$80,000,000 per year for 1959 and 1960 (Anon., 1965). This does not include funds spent for grasshopper control.

Consequently, much of the research has been directed towards methods of immediate direct control. Little basic research dealing with the biology and ecology of grasshoppers of rangeland has been done and even less on planted pasture species. Neglect in basic research has resulted from such factors as (1) lower economic return from grassland than from cropland; (2) insect damage is often less apparent in grassland than in cropland; and, (3) recent recognition of grasslands as resources deserving intensive scientific investigation.

Publications dealing with taxonomy and direct control of grasshoppers often include some references on the feeding habits and behavior of the various species. Past research on the biology of grasshoppers generally deals with a single or small number of species. These are usually those species of greatest economic importance. The author agrees with Hanson and Vorhies (1938) in concluding that basic research is essential. Grasshoppers as grassland pests cannot be dealt with scientifically unless there is an exact knowledge of their basic biology and ecology. Isely (1944) stated: "It should be evident that food specificity research will contribute to further progress in working out the control of pest grasshoppers."

This study was initiated to provide greater understanding of the biology and ecology of grasshoppers inhabiting tame pasture habitats through increased knowledge of their feeding and behavorial habits.

REVIEW OF LITERATURE

Of the vast amount of literature on the Acrididae, much is concerned with taxonomy and direct control of cropland species. Little information is available on feeding habits and behavior, type and extent of damage to plants, and host plant relationships of grasshoppers of planted grasslands.

Taxonomic works pertaining specifically to adult grasshoppers of Kansas include those by Brunner (1885, 1887), Isely (1905), Beamer (1915), Claassen (1915), and Hebard (1931, 1934). Many taxonomic papers concerning grasshoppers of other areas also include species common to Kansas. Some are: Alexander (1941), Ball <u>et al</u>. (1942), Brooks (1958), Coppock (1962), Froeschner (1954), Gurney and Brooks (1959), Hebard (1925, 1929, 1936, 1938), Knutson (1940), and Pfadt (1965).

Few taxonomic works have been published on grasshopper nymphal stages. Criddle (1931) and Hanford (1946) described and published keys to nymphs, some species of which are found in Kansas. Brusven (1966) published keys, descriptions, pictures, and ecological notes for the nymphal stages of the subfamily Acridinae of Kansas.

Many of the above taxonomic works include notations on favored habitat, food plants, and seasonal occurrence of various species of the Acrididae.

Lists of grassland species collected during non-taxonomic studies have been made by Arnett (1959), Wilbur and Fritz (1940), Woodruff (1937), and Hebard (1938).

Keys to the flora of Kansas have been prepared by Barkley (1963). Illustrations as well as keys to the grasses of Kansas have been furnished by Gates (1936). Launchbaugh (1964) illustrated and described many of the native grasses and broadleaf plants found in Kansas rangelands and, to some extent, in tame pasture areas. Many Kansas grassland plants are described by Hitchcock (1950), Stevens (1950), Phillips Petroleum (1963), and the North Central Regional Publication No. 36 (1960).

Opinions of entomologists regarding food preferences of grasshoppers have changed greatly during the last 100 years. The old idea that grasshoppers devour everything green has been accepted by many. However, it was originally applied only in describing <u>Melanoplus spretus</u> Walsh, (Riley, Packard, and Thomas, 1877). Later investigations by Criddle (1933), Isely (1937, 1938, 1944, 1946), Langford (1930), Henkle (1938), Shotwell (1941), Brett (1947), Pfadt (1949), Anderson and Wright (1952), and Scharff (1954) showed that many species of grasshoppers were associated with a restricted number of host plants. Coppock (1962) and Hebard (1931, 1938) listed general food preferences of most species of grasshoppers common to Kansas.

Isely and Alexander (1949) suggested determination of acridid food preferences by examination and identification of plant fragment contents in the grasshopper crop (ventriculus). Mulkern and Anderson (1959) developed a technique necessary for such a study. This technique utilized plant epidermal characteristics for plant fragment identification. Mulkern and Anderson (1959), Pruess (1960), Mulkern, Anderson, and Brusven (1962), Mulkern, Toczek, and Brusven (1964), and Campbell (1966) have conducted crop content analysis studies on most grasshopper species encountered in their studies. Scharff (1961) used crop content analysis to a limited extent in his study of the ecology of <u>Melanoplus sancuinipes</u> on Montana grasslands. Brusven and Mulkern (1960) and Pruess (1960) have published keys for the identification of plant fragments recovered from grasshopper crops.

Plant taxonomic workers have also utilized plant epidermal characters for the identification of plant species and varieties. Davis (1959) differentiated some 40 species of grasses by using various plant epidermal characteristics. Stoddard (1965) identified several varieties of alfalfa, marigold, and some grasses (four <u>Panicum</u> spp.) by leaf epidermal cell patterns. Nittler (1966) differentiated varieties of Kentucky bluegrass (<u>Poa pratensis</u> L.) by this method. Metcalf (1960) furnishes keys for the identification of many European plant.species through use of plant anatomical characters. Descriptions and illustrations of many of these characters are included. Several of the more common plant epidermal characters are illustrated and discussed by Esau (1960).

Factors affecting a grasshopper's selection of food plants appear to be quite numerous. Uvarov (1928) pointed out that differential feeding on plants is due primarily to insects seeking water. He concluded that water is the only chemical compound toward which the Acrididae nearly always show positive chemotropism. Criddle (1933) observed that Melanoplus bivittatus (Say) was greatly attracted to sowthistle, Sonchus arvensis L., during dry weather and that this attraction seemed to be due to the large amount of moisture which the plant contained. Wilbur (1936) reported that grasshopper injury to the inflorescence of pasture grasses was largely caused by a search for moisture. Hermann and Eslick (1939) working with grass seedlings of western wheatgrass (Acropyron smithii), smooth bromegrass (Bromus inermis), reed canarygrass (Phalaris arundinacea), and several species of Poa noted differential feeding not only among species but within species. The authors offered the explanation that differences were perhaps caused both by the amount of green material available and by the food preferences of the grasshoppers involved.

Brunson and Painter (1938) observed that grasshoppers, when forced to consume a single variety of corn, preferred some plants to others in openpollinated varieties. These authors suggested that the genetic composition of the plant may influence its susceptibility to attack by grasshoppers.

Barnes (1955), Pfadt (1949b), Pickford (1963), Riegert, Pickford, and Putnam (1965), and Smith (1959) found that certain plants are nutritionally inadequate for some grasshopper species. Painter (1963) suggested that plants and even different parts of the same plant may differ nutritionally. Fraenkel (1959) suggested that insects were attracted by such secondary plant compounds as alkaloids, glucosides, organic acids, saponins, and tannins rather than by the plants themselves.

The relationship of grasshoppers to their environment has long been a point of study and discussion. Parker (1930), Shotwell (1941), and Swenk and Bratt (1941) noted the effects of temperature and moisture on development of certain grasshopper species. Brett (1947) noted interrelated effects of temperature, humidity, and food on the development of <u>Melanoolus sanouinioes</u>.

Cantrall (1943), Friauf (1953), Shotwell (1930, 1948), Uvarov (1928), Isely (1937, 1938), Pfadt (1949a), Vestal (1913), and others have investigated the importance of habitat and host plant associations to grasshopper distribution. Vestal (1913) and Cantrall (1943) concluded that grasshoppers tend to seek habitats best suited for their optimum living conditions. Isely (1937) considered soils and their related vegetation used as food or shelter to be the primary factors in determining local grasshopper communities. Vestal (1913) suggested that grasshoppers of a given habitat tend to increase. decrease, or maintain themselves according to their tolerance to changes in temperature, moisture, soil, plant succession, and in interspecies conflicts.

Grasshoppers with a wide range of tolerance will be most capable of maintaining themselves.

Isely (1938) noted that the adaptation of certain acridids to introduced species of plants had complicated the problem of local distribution. He stated:

"The preference for Bermuda grass on the part of our acrididae was acquired. It is obvious....that vegetation absent in typical virgin, optimum habitats of a species can not,, belong to the original basic food requirements of the species."

Shotwell (1938) partially attributed the increase in numbers of certain grasshopper species, not previously prevalent, to introduced food plants.

The importance of land use on the abundance of grasshoppers has been shown by Arnett (1960), Barnes (1959), Bei-Bienko and Mishchenko (1951), Branson (1942), Buckell (1921), Coyner (1939), Nearney (1958, 1960), Odum (1953), Shotwell (1953), Treherne and Buckell (1924), and Uvarov (1928). Buckell (1921) and Nearney (1958) pointed out that grass sparseness as well as invasion of forbs is conducive to increased grasshopper numbers and injury.

Vegetation height, density, and degree of wetness have been listed as factors affecting grasshopper distribution by such authors as Diver and Diver (1933) and Kaufmann (1965).

Isely (1944, 1946) suggested that grasshoppers have evolved morphological characters which facilitate feeding in their preferred habitat. He found that mandibular morphology of grasshoppers could be correlated with the type of food plant utilized. Using this method, he classified 34 species as graminivorous, 27 as forbivorous, and 18 as herbivorous. Kaufmann (1965) found that Bavarian grasshopper species with differing food preferences showed differences in maxillary lacinae. Also, geophilous grasshoppers, which fed mainly on the ground, had either small arolia or none at all, while acridids found in tall vegetation had large and well developed arolia.

Numerous authors, including Erett (1947), Criddle (1917), Putnam (1954), and Parker, Newton, and Shotwell (1955), have linked grasshopper population increases with drought conditions. However, Nerney (1960) found that on poor or overgrazed Arizona rangeland, grasshopper populations were often greater after years of normal or above-normal rainfall than after those with unusually light precipitation. Scharff (1961) said that a distinction should be made among drought conditions in different geographical areas. In explanation, he stated that in such areas as the Midwest, drought and lowered humidities, while probably furnishing release from disease and parasites thus allowing <u>Melanoplus sanouinioes</u> to increase in numbers, seldom are severe enough to reduce nutrition levels to a semi-starvation condition. Such semi-starvation levels are often present during more critical drought periods in the more arid areas of the western United States.

Smith (1954) summarized information on grasshopper population fluctuations in Kansas for the period 1854 to 1954 and correlated this with climatic factors. He concluded that grasshopper numbers must be dependent upon kind, amount, and quality of food available, though modified by other environmental factors. Available data on food, however, did not permit a correlation to be made with grasshopper population trends.

In summary, the literature cited above indicated much study of the ecology of various grasshopper species. Food selection by grasshoppers seemed to be of prime importance to such ecological studies. Most authors also indicated the need for further research. This study is intended to extend the knowledge of the grasshopper and his relationship to the habitat, through further examination of the food preferences of grasshoppers inhabiting planted pastures.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Study Area

This study was conducted during 1965 and 1966 in 6 planted pastures, located in east-central Riley County and south-west Pottawatomie County, Kansas. The terrain is rolling, to hilly, with an elevation of 1,000 to 1,100 feet above sea level. All study pastures were located within 15 miles of Manhattan, Kansas.

The climate of this area is normally favorable for forage growth, having an average annual precipitation of 32 inches (81.28 cm.) and an average frost-free season of 172 days. During 1965 weather conditions were somewhat near the average, but during 1966 the spring was exceptionally cool and the summer hot and dry. Precipitation in 1966 was approximately half of normal (Appendix, Table 3).

All pastures studied had vegetation consisting of 1 or more planted forage species not native to eastern Kansas. Individual pastures were selected primarily with regard to vegetation type; but further selection was based upon grasshopper abundance, grasshopper species present, and proximity to Kansas State University.

Grasshopper collection site I (Fig. 1) was located in southwestern Pottawatomie County, approximately 10 miles north and 3 miles east of Manhattan, Kansas. The vegetation of the collection site was predominately western wheatgrass (<u>Agropyron smithii</u>) and Korean lespedeza (<u>Lespedeza</u> <u>stipulacea</u>), (Table 1). The soil type was silty clay. This site was used for 1965 and 1966 studies.

This pasture was overgrazed throughout the study period. Mowing was accomplished twice during each growing season. Management practices plus severe drought led to a very poor pssture condition throughout 1966.

- Fig. 1. Collection site I; an overgrazed western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza pasture. Site collected during 1965 and 1966.
- Fig. 2. Collection site II; non-grazed smooth brome-sweetcloveralfalfa pasture. Site collected during 1965 and 1966.
- Fig. 3. Collection site III; vegetation largely Kentucky bluegrass, Japanese brome, downy brome, sideoats grama and big and little bluestem. Pasture grazed, then rested, at approximately one month intervals. Site collected during 1965.

- Fig. 4. Collection site IV; an overgrazed smooth brome pasture. Site collected during 1966.
- Fig. 5. Collection site V; a moderately grazed smooth brome pasture. Site collected during 1966.

- Fig. 6. Collection site VI; a non-grazed reed canarygrass-smooth brome area. Site bordered by plantings of soybean, corn, sorghum, sunflower and by smooth brome pasture. Site collected during July, August, and September of 1966.
- Fig. 7. <u>Melanoplus differentialis</u> damage to reed canarygrass within collection site VI.

The study site was bordered by a roadside dominated by alfalfa (<u>Medicado</u> <u>sativa</u>), bindweed (<u>Convolvulus arvensis</u>) and smooth brome (<u>Bromus inermis</u>).

Grasshopper collection site II (Fig. 2) was located in Pottawatomie County, approximately 4 miles north-east of Manhattan, Kansas, and at the south edge of the Tuttle Creek Reservoir spillway. This collection site was utilized for both 1965 and 1966 studies.

During reservoir construction, the topsoil had been stripped from the area, leaving a silty clay subsoil at the surface. The area was then sown to smooth brome, alfalfa, and yellow and white sweetclover (<u>Melilotus</u> spp.), (Table 2). The area was neither mowed nor grazed prior to or during the study period.

Grasshopper collection site III (Fig. 3) was established as a Kansas State University sheep pasture, approximately 1/2 mile north of the city of Manhattan in Riley County, Kansas. The vegetation of this site was predominately Kentucky bluegrass, Japanese brome (<u>Bromus japonicus</u>), downy brome (<u>Bromus tectorum</u>), and big bluestem (<u>Andropocon gerardi</u>), (Table 3). The soil type was silty clay loam. The pasture was periodically heavily grazed, then rested at approximately one month intervals throughout the summer. Because of low grasshopper numbers, this site was utilized only for 1965 studies.

Grasshopper collection site IV (Fig. 4) was located in the Kansas State University horse pasture at the north edge of the university campus. The vegetation of the collection site was principally smooth brome with bindweed being the most common weed species (Table 4). The soil type was silty clay. This collection site was used for both 1965 and 1966 studies.

This pasture was heavily grazed throughout the 1965 and 1966 study period. The area was treated for weed control with 2,4-D herbicide on July 21, 1965, and on July 16 and September 9, 1966. Mowing was done periodically. Pasture condition was extremely poor during the drought months of July, August, and September of 1966. By August 1, 1966, little green vegetation was apparent.

Grasshopper collection site V (Fig. 5) was located in Riley County, approximately 3/4 mile north of Kansas State University proper. This pasture is managed by the Kansas State University Department of Animal Husbandry.

Smooth brome constituted the major portion of the vegetation. Baldwin ironweed (<u>Vernonia baldwini</u>) and western ragweed (<u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u>) were two commonly occurring weeds (Table 5). The soil type was silty clay.

This pasture was continuously grazed by cattle at a moderate rate throughout the study period. Mowing or herbicidal treatments were not practiced.

Grasshopper collection site VI (Fig. 6 and 7) was located approximately one mile north of Kansas State University campus. It was collected only during 1966. This collection site was situated within a small lowland area at the northeast corner of the university agronomy farm. This area of silt loam soils has an underlying watertable approximately 9 feet from the ground surface.

The collection site was located within and adjacent to a drainage gully which traverses the area. An almost pure stand of reed canarygrass (<u>Phalaris</u> <u>arundinacea</u>) was to be found within the gully basin with a mixed stand of smooth brome graduating to a pure stand of smooth brome at a distance from the gully edge (Table 6). This area was not grazed, however, the gully banks were mowed in the fall of 1966.

The collection site was bordered by study plots of corn, soybeans, and sorghum on the west and by a smooth brome pasture on the east.

Field and Laboratory Studies

A critical evaluation of the vegetation of each site was made three times during the 1965 growing season. In order to gauge the influence of drought upon plant availability, evaluations were made four times during the 1966 growing season. At each evaluation period, plant species making up the vegetation of each site were identified and given a numerical relative abundance rating (Tables 1-6). Plants were ranked 5, 4, 3, 2, 1 and -1 (trace) in decreasing order of abundance (adapted from Cain and Castro, 1959). Such ratings denoted both numbers and relative availability of a plant species to the grasshopper. Identification of plant species was partially accomplished through use of keys, descriptions, and pictures cited in the literature review.

A complete series of histological slides were made, including slides of each plant species from individual collection sites. Leaf and stem samples were taken from the top, center, and base of different plants of the same species and from different parts of the same plant. These samples were preserved in 70 percent alcohol. Later, the preserved material was ground in a Waring blender to a size approximating that found in the grasshopper crop (Mulkern and Anderson, 1959). The procedure utilized was similar to that of Mulkern and Anderson (1959) and Brusven and Mulkern (1960).

Descriptions for the identification of plant fragments were compiled by the author. Keys cited in the Review of Literature were also used.

Grasshopper collections were made at weekly intervals at each collection site throughout the growing season. Collections were not taken on rainy or excessively windy days or when the temperature was below 80° F. Five hundred standard sweeps with a sweep net, 15" in diameter and 28" deep,

constituted one site collection. Collected specimens were preserved in 75 percent alcohol until the crop contents could be analyzed.

Adult grasshopper identifications were verified by taxonomic keys and by comparisons with specimens in the collection of the Kansas State University Department of Entomology. This collection contains a large number of specimens from many previous studies, including those by Wilbur and Fritz (1940), Brusven (1966), and Campbell (1966). Many of the specimens in the collection were identified by A. B. Gurney of the U. S. National Museum and by Hebard (1931, 1934).

Identification of nymphal Kansas Acridinae was covered by Brusven (1966). Identification of nymphal Oedipodinae and Cyrtacanthacridinae of Kansas was difficult because of a scarcity of published keys. Criddle (1931) and Handford (1946) observed that most grasshopper genera could be differentiated in nymphal stages on the basis of adult characteristics. This author found adult characters to be of most value in differentiating nymphs of later stages. The author aided Merlyn A. Brusven and John B. Campbell in compiling a reference collection of nymphs of fifty species of grasshoppers found in Kansas pasture and rangeland. This reference collection, though not complete, proved a valuable aid to nymphal identification.

Crop content analysis data were recorded on I. B. M. data sheets as to collection date, location, collection site number, grasshopper species, instar, sex of adult, and plant species ingested. Empty crops and incidence of pollen, fungus, and arthropod parts were also recorded. The I. B. M. data sheets were then sent to North Dakota State University where I. B. M. data processing was done by Dr. Gregory B. Mulkern. These data were converted to tabular form, giving: the total number of specimens of each life stage of a species

collected per site; percentage of the total numbers of each specific life stage of a grasshopper species having ingested a particular plant species in each site; percentage of each life stage with empty crops or with pollen, fungus or arthropod parts ingested (Tables 7-30). In addition, each species was given a grass-forb index number for each site (Tables 33 and 34). The grass-forb index was obtained by subtracting the total percent of individuals of a species ingesting grasses from the total percent ingesting forbs. Grasshopper species whose ratings were 100 to 76 were classified as forb feeders; 75 to 26, mixed feeders preferring forbs; 25 to -25, mixed feeders; -26 to -75, mixed feeders preferring grasses, and; -76 to -100, grass feeders.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

A total of 2754 grasshopper crops were analyzed in 1965; 5781 in 1966. Thirty four species were represented. Crop content analyses data are oresented in Tables 7 to 30, inclusive. Summaries of the grass-forb indices for each species taken from each collection site are presented in Tables 33 and 34. In some instances, insufficient numbers of individuals of a grasshopper species were collected and studied to show significant results. Crop content analysis tables for those were not included. Results are discussed, however, as they may be important indicators of food preferences. Summaries of numbers of individual species analyzed from each of the six collection sites are presented in Tables 31 and 32.

There is possible bias when comparing numbers of a grasshopper species among individual collection sites. Four species (<u>Archia simplex</u>, <u>Pardalochora</u> <u>haldemanii</u>, <u>Ghortophaca viridfaciata</u> and <u>Eritettix simplex</u>) overwinter in Kansas in the nymphal stage. Hence, few early spring, third and fourth instar, specimens were collected. In addition, some species are more difficult to capture with a sweep net such as the subfamily Oedipodinae, in general, and <u>Dissosteria carolina</u> and <u>Chortophaca viridfaciata</u> in particular. <u>Acaneotettix deorum</u> often drops to the ground when disturbed rather than jumping, thus being more difficult to collect. On the other hand, it prefers short vegetation which favors collecting.

Pollen, fungus and arthropod parts were commonly found in the grasshopper crop; the ingestion rate varying with grasshopper species (Tables 7 to 30). Of these materials, fungus mycelium and spores were most commonly found. In many cases, the fungus could be seen growing on the plant fragments. In other instances the crops were almost totally filled with fungus exclusive of much plant material. This apparently indicated direct grasshopper feeding

Table 1. Relative plant abundance ratings ^(a) on grasshopper collection site I, planted western wheatgrass- Korean lespedeza pasture, Manhattan, Kansas, 1965-1966. Pasture treatment: mowed, heavily stocked. Soil type: silty clay.	nce ratings ⁽ ure, Manhatt silty clay.	a)on grassl an, Kansas	nopper col	ilection si 56. Pastur	tion site I, planted Pasture treatment:	ited western wheatg it: mowed, heavily	wheatgrass- heavily
Plants			Abundance	Abundance ratings on			
	19	1965		19	1966		
	July 13	Sept. 13	June 5	July 10	July 28	Sept. 27	Avg.
Perennial grasses Agropyron smithii	4	4	ო	4	4	4	4
<u>Andropogon gerardi</u> Andropogon sconarius	CV 1	0 1	~ 1	~ -			0 -
Bromus inermis Schedonnardus paniculatus							
Sorghastrum nutans Tridens flavus				77			
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Arlstida oligantha</u> <u>Setaria</u> spp.	1 1	77	77	77	77	I -	77
<u>Seddes</u> Carex spp.	1	1-	1	Ţ	1-	-1	-1
Perennial forbs Ambrosia psilostachya Aster ericoida Aster ericoidas Kuhnia guentoraoidas Ruhnia guentora Dailia stricta Ruellia ciliosa Ruellia ciliosa Ruellia crispus	∾नननननन	~~~~~	~~~~~~~	°77777777		~~~~~	

Table 1 (Cont.)

Plants			Abundance	Abundance ratings on				
	10	1965		10	1966			
	July 13	Sept. 13	June 5	July 10	July 28	Sept. 27	Av g.	
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Schrankia nuttallii</u> Solidago missourtensis <u>Verbena stricta</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	7 1 7 8	7 I I 1 8	7777	7778	7777	7777	7777	
Biennial forb Cirsium undulatum	-1	l.	Ţ	-1	-1	1	-1	
Annual forbs Chenorodium album Erigeron strigosus Hibiscus strigula Lescodeza stipulacea Solanum carolinense Solanum rostratum	່ ຊີ ຊີ ທີ່ ອີ ເ ເ	111411				44,444		
<u>Woody plants</u> <u>Rhus radicans</u> <u>Rosa archasans uffulta</u> <u>Symbhoricarpos</u> <u>orbiculatus</u> <u>Vitis vuloina</u>	7777		7777	7777	77'7	' ' ' '	7777	

(a) 5-very abundant, 4-abundant, 3-frequent, 2-occasional, 1-rare, -1-trace.

Relative plant abundance ratings^(a) on grasshopper collection site II, planted smooth brome-sweetclover-alfalfa pasture, Manhattan, Kansas, 1955-1966. Pasture treatment: nome, not stocked. Soil type: silty clay. Table 2.

Plants			Abundance	Abundance ratings on	_			
	T	1965		16	1966			
	July 13	Sept. 13	June 5	July 10	July 28	Sept. 27	Avg.	
Perennial grass Eronus inermis	ŋ	Û	Û	Ω	Ω	£	Û	
Perennial forbs Ambrosia psilostachya Ambrosia psilostachya Ascleobas sulivontii Helianthus maximiliani Medicago sativa Melilotus alba Melilotus alba Melilotus alba Fuellia humilis Verbena stricta				~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~				
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Croton</u> spp. <u>Euphorbia</u> (mat-forming spp.)	7'		[' '	Ţ. '	777		Ţ '	

5-very abundant, 4-abundant, 3-frequent, 2-occasional, 1-rare, -l=trace.

Plants	Abundance ratings on	catings on	
	1965		
	July 13	Sept. 13	Av g.
Perennial grasses Andropogon gerardi	ы	с	<i>с</i> г,
Andropogon scoparius	-1 C	ч с	1 2
Bouteloua curtipendula Chloris verticillata	N - 1	1 -1 <	1
Poa pratensis Sorghastrum nutans Sporobolus cryptandrus	4 – –	t 1	. – –
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Bromus japonicus</u>	m (0 0	2 . 5 2
Bromus tectorum Setaria spp.	-1	- 1	1 -1
Seddes	1	-1	-1
Callex spb.	1		
Perennial forbs Achillea millefolium lanulosa	[1 [7		1-1-
AMDrosta artenistritoria Convolvulus arvensis Taraxacum officinale	11	1 1	
Bionnial forb			

ٹہ
Con
-
. е
Le e
ā
Tab

Plants	Abundance ratings on	ratings on	
	1965		
	July 13	Sept. 13	Avg.
Annual forbs	-		
Solanum rostratum	77	17	77

(a) 5=very abundant, 4=abundant, 3=frequent, 2=occasional, 1=rare, -1=trace.

Plants			Abundance	Abundance ratings on	-		
	1	1965		10	1966		
	July 13	Sept. 13	June 5	July 10	July 28	Sept. 27	Av.g.
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus inermis	Ω	ŭ	ß	ŋ	с	с	ŝ
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Digitaria sanguinalis</u> <u>Eragrostis cilianensis</u>	I I		11	77	77	77	1 I
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia artemisiifolia</u> <u>Convolvulus arvenais</u> <u>Physalis spp.</u> <u>Rumex crisopus</u> Salvia azurea					הַרְּהְי [ָ] מ	· 1	
Annual forba Chenopodium album Convza canadensis Koohia sconaria Lactuca scariola Solanum caralinense		77777	77777		, , , , , , , ,	, , , , ,	77777

(a)5-very abundant, 4-abundant, 3-frequent, 2-occasional, 1-rare, -1-trace.

Plants		Abundance ratings on	atings on			
		1966				
	June 5	July 10	July 28	Sept. 27	Avg.	
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u> Poa pratensis	μ Γ	ר ט י	1 v	- 1	ro 1	
<u>Annual grass</u> Bromus japonicus	-1	-1	-1	-1	-1	
Perennial forbs Ambrosia artemisiifolia Ambrosia esilostachya Ambrosia esilostachya Antennazia neolecta Artemesia uberosa Astlenas uberosa Astlenas uberosa Astlenas uberosa Astlenas uberosa Solidago missouriensis Vernonia baldwini	~~~~~~~~~~~~					
<u>Biennial forbs</u> <u>Cirsium undulatum</u> <u>Crindelia squarrosa</u>	77	- 1	-1		1-1-	
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Amaranthus</u> <u>retroflexus</u>	-1	Ľ.	l-	-1	-1	

t.)	
(Cor	
ŝ	
Table	

Plants		Abundan	Abundance ratings on			
			1966			
	June 5	July 10	July 28	Sept. 27	Avg.	
Annual forbs						
Euchorbia (mat-forming spp.)	-1	1	1-	1-	7	
Euchorbia marginata	1	٦	-1-	-	-	
Kochia scoparia	-1	-	-1	-	ī	
Levidium densiflorum	Ţ	-	-	-1	7	
	7	7	7	-, ·	-1 ,	
Solanum rostratum	7	1	L	T	-	

(a)5=very abundant, 4=abundant, 3=frequent, 2=occasional, l=rare, -l=trace.

Abundance ratings on	1966	July 28 Sept. 27	Bronnestie scortshills	1-	5	ta	I- I	Annual arasses Bromus iaconicus	<u>nalis</u>		cdos <u>Carex</u> spp. –1 –1	Typha <u>latifolla</u> 1 1	Perennial forbs Ambrosia artemichifolia
		Avg.	£.	77	Ω.	1	77	-		77	1-	1	7

Table 6. Relative plant abundance ratings^(a)on grasshopper collection site VI, planted reed canary-

t.)
Con
0
le
Lab

Plants	Abundan ci	Abundance <u>ratings on</u> 1966		
	July 28	Sept. 27	Avg.	
Perennial forbs Callithoe involucrata Convoluus arvensis Desmanthus illinoensis Lessedeza capitata Medicago sativa Medicago sativa Medicago sativa Physalis spo. Physalis spo. Pelygonum pennsylvanicum Ruellia cilloga Rumex crisous		~~~~ ~ ~~~~~		
<u>Sagittaria latifolia</u> <u>Vernonia altissima</u> Biennial forbg	- T T		1-7	
Girsium altissimum Gaura parvificra Verbascum thapsus	777	777		
Annual forbs Amaranthus retroflexus Chenopodium album Convza canadensis Eubhorbia marcinata Eubhorbia (mat-forming spp.) Lactuca scariola		구구구구구ㅋ		

Table 6. (Cont.)

Plants	Abundance ratings on 1966	atings on		
	July 28	Sept. 27	Avg.	
<u>Annual forbs</u> Tribulus terrestris	1	1	Ч	
Moody plants Amorpha fruticosa Populus spp. Sallx spp. Vitis vulpina	⁰ 구 구 구 구	°7777	~~~~~	

(a)5=very abundant, 4=abundant, 3=frequent, 2=occasional, 1=trace.

Gron Contents	of crops containing plant	ntaining pl	par	Percent ts, pollen. Instars	1 1	gus, ar	fungus, arthropod parts. Adul	or	empty
	All instars and Adults	1(104)(a) 2(130) 3(278)	2(130) 3	3(278)	4(109)	5(62)	Male(35)	Female(30)	30)
			Colled	Collection site	te I				
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Agropyron smithii</u>	44	59	20	32	35	39	20		47
<u>Andropogon gerardi</u> Bromis inermis	1 17	14 0	12	16	23	17	10		22
<u>Schedonnardus paniculatus</u> Sorghastrum nutans	5 1	0	0 9	4 6	1	3 10	οώ		04
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Aristida oligantha</u> Setaria <u>lutescens</u>	0.4	00	00	04	£ 6	<i>ო ო</i>	4 0		5 1
<u>Unidentified grasses</u>	10	7	12	11	L	10	13		9
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	10	11	18	16	11	e	5		12
Uni dentified forbs	1	0	0	0	0	З	1		0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens apalyzed Grass-Forb Indax(D)	24 7 (434) (-71)	40 22	37 0 20	16 4 18	18 35 25	14 7 12	27 8 19		25 12 2
			Colle	Collection site II	te II				
		(5)(a)	(2)	(8)	(26)	(15)	(1)		(2)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	1	100

~
Cont.
7.
[able

	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fundus, arthronod parts, or	taining of	ant: par	Pero	Percent pollen fun	art art	hronod nar	ts. or emuty	
Crop Contents			I	Instars	100 V 6 110		V	Adul ts	
	All Instars and Adults	1(5)(a)	2(5)	3(8)	4(26)	5(15)	Male(1)	Female(2)	
			Collec	tion si	Collection site II (cont.)	ont.)			
Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	12	0	0	0	0	
Fungus	18	0	20	12	22	25	0	0	
Arthropod parts	6	0	20	12	4	16	0	0	
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	12 (62) (-99)	0	0	0	15	20	0	20	
			Collec	Collection site III	te III				
		(12) ^(a)	(11)	(2)	(2)	(2)	(38)	(15)	
Perennial grasses									
Androoogon gerardi	6	0	0	25	0	28	e	7	
Andropogon scoparius	7	0	12	25	0	14	r)	14	
Bouteloua curtipendula	25	18	37	0	0	42	25	28	
Chloris verticillata	7	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	
Poa pratensis	29	54	25	25	50	0	31	21	
Sorghastrum nutans	Ċ	0	25	0	0	0	0	7	
Sporobolus asper	1	0	0	0	0	0	e	0	
Sporobolus cryptandrus	1	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	
Annual grasses									
Aristida oligantha	9	0	0	0	0	0	6	14	
<u>Bromus Japonicus</u> Setaria <u>lutescens</u>	6 10	60	32 O	52 O	20 0	00	12	0	

Table 7. (Cont.)

Cron Contente	of crops o	ontaining p	lant par	Percent ts, pollen, Instars	ent en, func	gus, art	hropod part	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
03103100 A010	All Instars and Adults	s 1(12)(a) 2(11)	2(11)	3(5)	4(2)	5(7)	Male(38)	Female(15)
		Collection site III (cont.	site III	(cont.)				
Unidentified grasses	5	18	0	0	0	14	с С	0
<u>Grass-like plants</u> <u>Carex</u> spp.	1	0	0	0	0	0	e	0
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Convolvulus arvensis</u>	l	0	0	0	50	0	0	0
Pollen	ŝ	00	55	00	00	00	сл с	~ ~
rungus Arthropod parts	νm	00	00	00	00	14	იო	-0
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	13 (90) (-97)	ω	27	50	0	0	15	9
		Collection site IV	site IV					
		(1) ⁽³⁾	(1) ⁽³⁾ (31)	(13)	(22)	(18)	(12)	(11)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	26	100	92	06	100	100	76	100
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Bromus jaconicus</u> <u>Eragrostis cilianensis</u>	1	00	00	10	00	00	90	00

:
Con
~
2.
ble
Tal

	of crons c	ontaining)	olant par	Percent	ent en fun	gus, art	hropod part	Percent of crors containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
urop contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	All Instars and Adults $1(7)^{(a)} 2(31) 3(13) 4(22) 5(18)$	2(31)	3(13)	4(22)	5(18)	Male(51)	Male(51) Female(71)
		Collection site IV (cont.)	site IV	(cont.)				
Unidentified grasses	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	1
<u>Amnual Forb</u> Ambrosia artemisifolia	1	0	0	0	9	0	7	0
Unidentified forbs								
Pollen	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	1
Fungus	23	14	32	50	26	13	17	21
Arthropod parts	4	0	0	0	9	0	ŝ	7
Empty crops	19	0	19	23	31	16	33	00
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	(213) (-96)							

(a) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage. (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 25-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

	of crons cont	aining	olant pa	Per rts, pol	Percent pollen, fu	e 'snbu	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or empty	or empty
Crop Contents	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a	(0)0 (Instars 1(0) ^(a) 2(2) 3(19) 4(61) 5(40)	4(61)	5(40)	Adults Male(190) Female(151)	ts ale(151)
		Colle	Collection site	te I				
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Agropyron smithii	60	0	0	52	57	59	60	61
Andropogon gerardi	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
Bromus inermis	14	0	0	23	œ	13	15	16
<u>Schedonnardus</u> <u>paniculatus</u> Sorghastrum nutans	п 0	00	00	00	- 0	00	7 1	0 ო
	J	,	,	ŀ	,	ŀ	J	,
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Setaria lutescens</u>	5	. 0	20	11	n	2	2	ч
Unidentified grasses	11	0	50	2	15	16	10	11
<u>Annual forb</u> Lesoedeza stioulacea	4	0	0	ß	ŝ	û	â	n
Fungus	40	0	0	35	35	56	41	38
Arthropod parts	2	0	0	0	0	2	2	ო
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	(463)	0	0	10	ε	٢	Ð	Т

Table 8. Food ingestions by <u>Orbhulella speciosa</u> in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas.

results of the first state of the state of t	of ore s containing what warts willen	la niniat	ant har	Percent		ms. art	findus. arthropod parts. or	s or empty
Crop Contents		TA FUTTIER	I and a mo	Instars			Ad	
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(4)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(1)	Male(1) Female(0)
		Collect	Collection site II	II a.				
Perennial grass Bronus inermis	100	0	0	100	0	0	100	0
Fungus Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	100 40 (5) (-100)	00	00	100 25	00	00	00	00
		Collect	Collection site IV	e IV				
		(9) ⁽³⁾	(9) ^(a) (30)	(19)	(82)	(62)	(142)	(82)
Perennial grass Bronus inermis	. 91	100	83	96	86	96	92	92
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Digitaria sanguinalis</u> <u>Eragrostis cilianensis</u>	n 1	00	00	00	40	е 0	0 0	n u
Unidentified orasses	4	0	16	4	8	0	9	2
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Crass-Forb Index(b)	67 5 27 (461) (-100)	100 88	, 80 0 33	20 0 Q	59 25 25	56 1 17	68 20	85 8 8

Table 8. (Cont.)

Table 8. (Cont.)

	of crons containing plant parts, pollen,	taining pl	ant par	ts, pollen.		us, ar	fungus, arthropod parts, or	r empty
Crop Contents			н	Instars			Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(4) ^(a)	2(9)	3(45) 4(190)		5(97)	Male(247) Female(160)	1e(160)
		Collect	Collection site V	e V				
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Bouteloua curtioendula	T	0	0	0	0	0	l	5
Bromus inermis Poa pratensis	87 1	20	87 12	76 0	33 83	88 1	91 0	84 1
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Bromus japonicus</u>	1	0	0	0	~	1	1	5
Unidentified grasses	ŝ	50	0	14	4	4	2	4
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>		00	00	00	0 I	0,0	10	
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Ambrogia artemisiifolia</u> <u>Kochia scoparia</u> <u>Solanum carolinense</u>		000	000	0 10 0	000	000	000	1 0 I
Unidentified forbs	0	0	0	8	I	4	Т	ŝ
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens gnalyzed	46 8 23 (752)	2000	25 0 11	32 24 24	34 32 32	43 18 25	53 25 25	56 8 7

	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollon, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Advite	taining pl	ant part	Percent.	ent en, fun	gus, art	hropod part	irts, or empty
Crop contents	All Instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)} 2(0) 3(0) 4(0) 5(1)$	2(0)	3(0)	4(0)	5(1)		Male(3) Female(3)
		Collect	Collection site VI	IV é				
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Bromus inermis	83	0	0	0	0	100	100	50
Phalaris arundinacea	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	20
<u>Annual forb</u> Ambrosia artimisiifolia	16	0	0	0	0	0	33	0
Fungus	33	0	0	0	0	100	0	50
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	14 (7) (-84)	0	0	0	0	0	0	33

 (a) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage.
 (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder; referring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Table 8. (Cont.)

Grop Contents	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, Instars	ontaining	olant par I	per rts, pol Instars	1 1	ngus, a	fungus, arthropod parts, or Adults	Adults	empty
	All Instars and Adults 1(104)(a)2(130)	1(104) ^(a)			4(109)	5(62)	Male(35)	Female(30)	0
		Collec	Collection site	I					
Perennial <u>grasses</u> Agropyron smithii	4	0	1	4	ŝ	ŝ	12	Т	15
Andropocon gerardi	0	0	0	1	0	0	0		0
Bromus inermis Sorghastrum nutans	10	90	13 1	6 1	0	14	25	I	0
<u>Annual grasses</u> Setaria lutescens	1	0	1	с	0	1	0		0
Unidentified grasses	33	0	4	ы	с	1	0		0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Medicago</u> <u>sativa</u> <u>Vernonia</u> <u>paldwini</u>	Ю 4 Ц	000	1 8 3	4 4 N	110	10 m O	~ O O		2 3
<u>Biennial forb</u> <u>Cirsium undulatum</u>	1	0	0	0	1	IJ	0		0
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Lespedeza stipulacea</u> Solanum carolinense	46 1	47 0	43 0	47 1	53 1	50	21 0		26
Unidentified forbs	12	20	10	6	10	15	12		2

_
ٹـ
Con
6
Ċ,
lde

$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		of crops o	ontaining p	lant pa	Pe tts, po	Percent pollen, fu	nqus, a	Percent of cross containing rlant warts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or	rts, or empty	
All Instars All Instars $(104)^{(a)}_{2(130)}$ (278) (109) $5(62)$ $Male(35)$ collection site I (cont.) collection site I (cont.) (748) (748) $(11)^{(a)}$ (25) (32) (35) (32) (748) (748) $(11)^{(a)}$ (25) (35) (17) (13) (35) (62) $(11)^{(a)}$ (25) (35) (17) (13) (35) 42 50 43 27 36 33 51 11 0 <th>Crop Contents</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Instars</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Adults</th> <th></th>	Crop Contents				Instars				Adults	
Collection site I (cont.) Collection site I (cont.) $ \begin{array}{ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		All Instar and Adults	s1(104)(a)2		3(278)	4(109)	5(62)	Male(35)	Female(30)	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	ion sit	ce I (co	nt.)				
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Pollen	0	I	0	0	0	0	0	0	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Fungus	32	35	32	28	32	36	40	42	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Arthropod parts	12	10	9	8	. 15	15	21	30	
Collection site II $(11)^{(3)}$ (25) (33) (17) (13) 42 50 43 27 36 33 1 0 0 9 0 0 1 0 0 43 27 36 33 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 52 25 37 59 45 50 6 10 25 18 9 9 9 25 26 4 25 13 45 50 6 0	Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	24 (748) (62)	\$	33	28	15	ω	α	13	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	ion sit	ie II					
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			(11)(a)	(25)	(32)	(11)	(13)	(32)	(1)	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Perennial grass Bromus incrmis	42	50	43	27	36	33	51	11	
$ \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 & 4 & 0 & 0 \\ 5 & 0 & 6 & 0 & 18 & 8 \\ 5 & 2 & 5 & 37 & 59 & 45 & 50 \\ 10 & 25 & 18 & 9 & 9 & 25 \\ 4 & 25 & 6 & 0 & 0 & 8 \\ 2 & 4 & 0 & 25 & 13 & 45 & 50 \\ 2 & 0 & 0 & 18 & 0 \\ 1143 \\ (143) \\ (26) \\ (26) \end{array} $	<u>Perennial forbs</u> Ambrosia neilostachva	-	c	c	¢	C	C	0	c	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Helianthus maximiliani	П	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Medicago sativa	5	0	9	0	18	œ	9	0	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Melilotus spp.	52	25	37	59	45	50	58	71	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Unidentified forbs	10	25	18	6	6	25	0	14	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Pollen	4	25	9	0	0	œ	9	0	
4 0 0 0 18 0 29 63 36 37 35 7 (143) (26)	Fungus	27	0	25	13	45	50	27	28	
29 63 36 37 35 7 (143) (26)	Arthropod parts	4	0	0	0	18	0	9	4	
	Empty crops	29	63	36	37	35	7	17	0	
	Grass-Forb Index ^(b)	(143) (26)								

Cont.)
6
Table

	of crons co	percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen.	Mant pa	per rts, pol		ngus, ar	thropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	s 1(12)(a)	2(5)	3(7)	4(5)	5(8)	Male(1)	Female(1)
		Collect	Collection site III	e III				
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Bouteloua curtipendula</u> <u>Poa pratensis</u>	6, 8). 23, 23	10 70	0 100	0 42	0 40	0 0	00	00
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Bromus labonicus</u> Setaria lutescens	14 5	00	00	0 14	00	57 14	00	100
Perennial forbs Ambrosia ssilostachva Convolvnius arvensis Oxalis stricta Taraxecum officinale	2 14 14	10 00000	0000	0 4 4 1 4 4 4	0 40 0 40 0	0000	0 0 100	0001
Pollen Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimes (b) Grass-Forb Index(b)	17 23 12 (39) (-26)	20 10 16	66 40 0 33 40 0	0040	0 0 0 0 0	0 0 122	0000	100000000000000000000000000000000000000
		Collection s (33) ^(a) (23)	Collection site IV 33) ^(a) (23) (5,	ie IV (54)	(103)	(47)	(16)	(14)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	62	23	70	40	81	76	28	44

Table 9. (Cont.)

Cron Contante	Percent of crois containing plant parts, pollon,	itaining pl	ant pa	rts, po	Percent pollen, fu	ingus, a	fungus, arthropod parts, or	irts, or empty
	All Instars and Adults	1(33) ^(a) 2(23)	2(23)	3(54)	3(54) 4(103)	5(47)	Male(16)	Female(14)
		Collection site IV (cont.)	on sit	e IV (c	ont.)			
Annual grasses Bromus japonicus Eraqrostis cilianensis		4 0	00	0 13	00	00	00	0 11
Unidentified grasses	1	4	ß	0	1	7	0	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Convolvulus arvensis</u> <u>Physalis spp.</u> Salvai azurea	21 1	8 4 8	0 0 0	45 0	13 1	17 0 0	002	11 0
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia artemisiifolia</u> <u>Xochia scoparia</u> <u>Lactuca scariola</u>	13 11 1	14 23 9	15 20 5	12	000	17 5 0	57 28 0	33 11 0
Unidentified forbs	Ð	4	0	7	2	2	14	22
Pollen Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimes gnalyzed Grass-Eorb Index(b)	7 9 (250) (-19)	14 38 36 36	0 20 13	2 5 25	30 2 ¢ 0	2 23 17	64 21 12	33 22 35 35 35

(a) Actual number of grasshoppers examined; not a percentage.

Table 9. (Cont.)

(b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 75 to 26=mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100=grass feeder.

Table 10. Food ingestions by <u>Melanoplus femurrubrum</u> in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas. 1966.

	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or	taining p	lant pa	rts. pol	Percent pollen. fu	nqus, a	rthropod pa	rts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(0) ^(a) 2(20) 3(105)	2(20)	3(105)	4(77)	5(33)	Male(24)	Female(9)
		Collection site I	ion sit	e I				
<u>Perennial arasses</u> <u>Aorobyron smithii</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	44	00	0 QU	7 4	1 4	0 9	9 14	00
Unidentified grasses	4	0	ß	4	ŝ	0	4	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> Ambrosis psilostachya <u>Medicago sativa</u> <u>Solidago missouriensis</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	a n 0 a	0000	0000	3 10 7	11 16 0	6999	4000	0 12 12
<u>Annual forb</u> Lesoedeza <u>stipulacea</u>	63	0	70	63	61	75	47	62
Unidentified forbs	7	0	11	9	4	9	19	12
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty corps Total specimens 2p31yzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	52 10 (268) (75)	000	47 0 15	54 9 2 8	48 10 11	45 12 0	57 52 12	75 25 11

Table 10. (Cont.)

	Percent of crois containing plant parts, pollen,	taining r	olant pe	Per Per	11 1	ngus, a	fungus, arthropod parts, or	rts, or empty	
Crop Contents				Instars		Sector Se		Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(1)(a)	2(2)	3(42)	4(25)	5(23)	Male(17)	Female(12)	
		Collect	Collection site II	te II					
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bronus inermis</u>	20	0	0	e	22	21	42	36	
Unidentified grasses	I	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia ssilostachya</u> <u>Medicaqo sativa</u> <u>Melilotus</u> spp.	15 15 46	000	50 50	13 27 37	18 59	26 52	7 57	9 27	
Unidentified forbs	6	100	0	17	4	0	L	6	
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens applyzed Grass-Erbt Lindex (bp	60 22 19 (122) (60)	100	100 0 0	17 13 30	22 12 12	42 10 17	78 28 17	ω ü ü 0, Ö	
		Collect	Collection site IV	te IV					
		(1) ^(a)	(46)	(1) ^(a) (46) (174)	(36)	(1)	(4)	(2)	
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	67	0	84	65	64	100	25	60	
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Digitaria sanguinalis</u>	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	20	

	Percent Percent Percent or empty or empty	taining bl	ant pa	Per Per	Percent pollen, fur	iqus, ar	thropod pa	urts, or emp	k
Contents	100 CONTO 10	A KINTING I		Instars				Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(1)(a) 2(46) 3(174) 4(36)	2(46)	3(174)	4(36)	2(1)	Male(4)	Female(5)	
		Collecti	ion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	ont.)				
Unidentified arasses	Q	0	7	Ð	ы	0	0	0	
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia osilostachya</u> <u>Convolvulus arvensis</u> <u>Medicaqo sativa</u>	1 15 1	000	000	1 15 0	0 22 0	000	0 25	000	
Annual forba Ambrosia artemisiifolia Kochia scooaria Lactuca scariola Solanum carchinense		0000	0 ~ 0 0	9 2 0 L	30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 3	0000	0 0 0 0	0000	
Unidentified forbs	10	0	с	10	6	0	25	20	
Pollen Eungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens agalyzed Crass-Forb Index bg	1 53 12 36 (267) (-37)	0000	0 46 11 43	51 8 40	0 54 112 13	100	25 50	100 100 0	

Table 10. (Cont.)

Cros Contacts	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen,	itaining pl.	ant pe	Pel Tts, pol		lqus, ar	thropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
STUATION do TO			1	Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(10)(a) 2(54)	1	3(103)	4(26)	5(9)	Male(6)	Female(19)
		Collection site V	on sit	e V				
Perennial grasses Rromus inermis Poa pratensis	55 2	55 0	58 6	24	54	75 0	33 0	56 0
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Bromus japonicus</u>	n	0	3	2	4	12	0	0
Unidentified grasses	4	11	0	2	0	0	16	18
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	4 11	11 0	3	14	4 0	0	0 16	90
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia artemisiifolia</u> <u>Kochia scoparia</u> <u>Solanum carolinense</u>	С 4 Ю	000	0 M M	11 7 1	440	0 12	16 0	000
Unidentified forbs	11	22	10	œ	18	0	33	12
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimes analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	28 4 (227) (-22)	66 0 10	10 0 46	22 0 31	40 0 15	50 37 11	0 0 33	37 31 15

ئہ:
Ċ
0
0
~
0
1
e
1
2
- 65

	of cro s con	taining r	olant pa	Per rts, pol	Percent pollen, fu	ngus, a	thropod pa	Percent of crows containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults 1(10)(a)	1(10)(a)	2(4)	3(12)	4(14)	5(24)	Male(11)	Female(13)
		Collect	Collection site VI	e VI				
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Promus inermis</u> <u>Phalaris arundinacea</u>	26 33	00	0	11	50	22 31	27 45	33 33
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Digitaria sanguinalis</u> <u>Setaria lutescens</u>	4 1	00	25 0	22	00	00	00	00
Unidentified orasses	16	0	25	11	10	. 18	6	25
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Convolvulus arvensis</u> <u>Polygonum pennsylvanicum</u>	1 2 1	000	000	0 11 0	000	404	000	000
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Kochia sconaria</u> Lactuca scariola	5 5	00	00	00	10	04	99	00
Unidentified forbs	7	0	25	0	10	13	0	0
Pollen Fungus	1 50	00	0	0 66	10 40	0 40	0 45	0 75

•	(Cont.)
	10.
	Table

mon Contants	Percent percent of cross containing mlant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Adults Instars	itaining p	lant par	Per irts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fu rs	iqus, az	thropod pa	rts, or empl Adults
ALOD COLLEGICS	All Instars and Advits 1(10)(a) 2(4) 3(12) 4(14) 5(24) Mate(11) Female(13)	1(10)(a)	2(4)	3(12)	4(14)	5(24)	Male(11)	Female(13)
		Collect	ton sit	Collection site VI (cont.)	nt.)			
Arthropod parts Empty crops	12	00	00	11 25	0 28	0 00	60	16
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(-63)							

(b)Accual number 1 yasservery and the percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; (b)Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100⁻grass feeder.

Table 11. Food ingestions by <u>Phoetaliotes nebrascensis</u> in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas. 1965.

Ana Partorto	Percent of crops containing plant parts, collen. Instars	d puinie	lant par I	Percent rts, oollen, Instars		jus. art	hropod part Ac	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Adults
ortob contresters	All Instars and Adults	1(1) ^(a)	2(5)	3(7)	4(1)	5(1)	Male(3)	Female(2)
		Collec	Collection site I	e I				
Perennial grasses Agropyron smithii Bronus incrnis Sorghastrym mitans	18 6	0 100	25 25 0	000	000	000	100 100	000
Unidentified grasses	12	0	0	0	1.00	1,00	0	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Medicago sativa</u>	ÓÓ	00	00	16 16	00	00	00	00
<u>Biennial forbs</u> <u>Cirsium undulatum</u>	12	0	0	33	0	0	0	0
<u>Annual forbs</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	31	0	50	33	0	0	0	100
Pollen Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimas Apqlyzed	6 12 20 20 20 20	0000	50 0 0 50 0 0	16 16 14	0000	0000	0 50 33	0000

nt.)
<u></u>
11.
ble
Ē

	of crons con	taining pla	ont part	Pero	Percent pollen, fun	gus, art	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty	or empty
Croo Contents			T	Instars			Adults	ts
	All Instars and Adults	1(75) ^(a) 2(114) 3(162) 4(207)	(114)	3(162)	4(207)	5(57)	Male(44) Female(24)	male(24)
		Collection site II	ion site	II e				
Perennial grass Eromus inermis	96	98	98	96	96	89	<i>L</i> 6	100
Unidentified grasses	1	1	0	1	0	0	0	0
Perennial forbs Medicado sativa Melilotus spp.	N 1	00	00	0 0	0 0	2	04	00
Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	1	Ч	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Grass-Forb Indox (0)	29 22 (683) (-94)	31 10 14	32 30 6 33	21 25 25	30	42 6 17	35 21 21	15 25 16
		Collection site III	ion sit	e III				
		(1)(a)	(1)	(4)	(2)	(0)	(2)	(1)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Andropogon scoparius</u> <u>Poutebua curtinondula</u> Panicum virgetum Poa pratensis	20 20 10 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	0000	0 0 0 0 1000	50 25 25	100 0 0	0000	0 0 100	0 0 100

~
-
C
0
0
de.
[ab

Contante	of crois containing plant parts, pollon, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining pl	ant part Ir	parts, pollen, Instars	ent en, fun	qus, arth	ropod part	rts, or emp Adults	<u>oty</u>
	All Instars and Adults	1(1)(a) $2(1)$ $3(4)$	2(1)	3(4)	4(2)	4(2) 5(0)	Male(2)	Male(2) Female(1)	1
		Collect	ion site	Collection site III (cont.)	ont.)				
Fungus Empty crops Coroctal specimens analyzed	10 9 (11)	0 100	00	25 0	00	00	00	00	00
500010 00010 00010		Collect	Collection site IV	o IV					
		(2) ^(a)	(2) ^(a) (1) (4)	(4)	(2)	(0)	(0)		(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	100	100	100	100	0	0	0	0
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index D	16 (12) (-100)	0	0	0	40	0	0		0

(b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feede 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Manhattan,
sites.
collection
pasture
planted
LL.
liotes nobrascensis
Phoeta
μq
Food ingestions Kansas, 1966.
Table 12.

	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty. Adults	taining pl	Lant par	arts, pol	Percent pollen, fu	ngus, al	rthropod pa	rts, or empt Adults
Crop Contents	All Instars and Adults	$1(4)^{(a)}$ $2(23)$ $3(518)$	2(23) 3	(518)	4(317)	5(12)	Male(21)	Female(3)
		Collecti	Collection site II	11				
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus inermis	93	100	93	94	16	100	94	100
Unidentified grasses	4	0	9	c	9	0	Ω	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia osilostachya</u> <u>Medicado sativa</u> <u>Melilotus</u> spp.	<u>, т</u> , т ,	000	000	1 0 1	0 I 0	000	000	000
Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	Γ	l	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	53 54 (898) (-96)	2002	40 0 34	47 5 23	59 20	85 28 41	82 19	100 33 0
		Collecti (0) ^(a)	Collection site IV (0) ^(a) (3) (9	e IV (5)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus inermis	100	0	100	100	0	0	0	0

_
Cont.
12. (
le
Tabl

	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen.	itaining p	lant pa	Pero	Percent pollen, fun	gus, a.	cthropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)} 2(3)$	2(3)	3(5)	4(0) 5(0)	5(0)	Male(0)	Fcmale(0)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	it.)			
Fungus Arthropod parts Total specimens anglyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	37 12 (8) (-100)	00	333	40	00	00	00	00
		Collect	Collection site V	۲ د				-
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	0	0	100	0	0	0	0
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	(1)							
		Collect	Collection site VI	IV e				
		$(0)^{(a)}$ (8)	(8)	(13)	(36)	(4)	(2)	(2)
Perennial grasses Bromus inermis	26	00	0 10	33	34	0 1	0 0	00
<u>Spartina pectinata</u> Sporobolus asper	24 1 C	000	0 12	200	200	000	200	000

Table 12. (Cont.)

	of cross con	taining p	lant pa	Per rts, pol	Percent pollen, fur	ngus, ar	thropod pa	Percent of cro's containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty	
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults	
-	All Instars and Adults $1(0)^{(3)} 2(8) 3(18) 4(36) 5(4)$	1(0)(a)	2(8)	3(18)	4(36)	5(4)	Male(2)	Male(2) Female(2)	
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site VI (cont.)	nt.)				
Annual grasses	~	0	0	ý	0	C	0	0	
Digitaria sanguinalis Setaria lutescens	t 9	0	0	9	1 00	0	0	0	
Unidentified orasses	14	0	37	9	80	33	50	0	
Unidentified forbs	m	0	12	0	7	0	0	0	
	42	0	37	46	40	99	20	0	
Arthronod narte	-	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	
Empty crops Total eneriments analyzed	7 (68)	0	0	16	0	25	0	0	
Grass-Forb Index(b) 1 200	(-05)								1
(a)									

 (a) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage.
 (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 75 to 26=mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Table 13. Food ingestions by <u>Melanoplus</u> <u>differentialis</u> in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas. 1965.

	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen,	ntaining	plant par	Per ts, pol		nqus, ar	thropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty	F 1
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(3) ^(a) 2(27)		3(45)	4(11)	5(11)	Male(2)	Female(2)	,
		Collec	Collection site I	I					
Perennial grasses Agropyion smithii	8	0	4	œ	0	30	0	0	
Andropogon gerardi Bromus inermis	.1 25	00	0 45	20	20 0	10 20	00	00	
Annual grassos Aristida oligantha Sataria lutescons	1 4	00	06	00	0	10	00	00	
Unidentified grasses	9	0	4	8	10	0	0	0	
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Medicago satiya</u>	4 1	00	0 6	0 0	10 0	0	00	00	
<u>Biennial forb</u> <u>Cirsium undulatum</u>	l	0	0	0	0	0	50		
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacca	38	100	22	54	40	10	50	0	
Unidentified forbs	10	0	6	5	10	10	0	100	
Pollen Fungus	, 20 ,	00	4 31	20 8	30 0	00	00	00	

Cont.
13. (
Table

Croo Contents	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen, Instars	taining J	plant p	Pea arts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fu rs	ngus, ar	thropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(3)(a)	2(27)	1(3)(a) 2(27) 3(45) 4(11)	4(11)	5(11)	Male(2)	Female(2)
		Collec	tion si	Collection site I (cont.)	nt.)			
Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Porb Index(D)	11 19 (101) (8)	0 66	18	11 22	9 9	10	20	20
		Collec	Collection site II	te II				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(4)	(4)	(2)	(1)	(1)
Perennial grass Bromus inermis	30	0	0	25	33	0	100	0
Perennial forbs Medicago sativa Melilotus spp.	10 30	00	00	25	33 33	00	00	0 100
Unidentified forbs	30	0	0	50	0	100	0	0
Fungus Arthropods parts	20 30	0 0	00	25 50	00	000	000	100
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	16 (12) (40	0	D	Þ	ß	Pr		

Table 13. (Cont.)

	of crons con	taining p	lant pai	rts, pol	pollen, fur	iqus, ai	thropod par	of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or emoty
Crop Contents				Instars		and the second se		Adults
	All Instars and Adults	$1(1)^{(3)}$ $2(0)$ $3(0)$ $4(0)$ $5(0)$	2(0)	3(0)	4(0)	5(0)		Male(0) Female(0)
		Collection site III	ion sit(III a				
Empty crop Total space ens analyzed	100 (1)	100	0	0	0	0	0	0
		Collection site IV	ion situ	e IV				
		(0) ^(a) (0)	(0)	(3)	(2)	(2) (10)	(4)	(2)
Perennial grass Bromus inermis	100	0	0	100	100	100	100	100
Finders	5	0	0	0	0	16	0	0
Arthropod parts	20	0	0	0	0	16	25	40
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Tudex(b)	16 (24) (-100)	0	0	0	0	64		D

(b) control of the species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 75 to 26=mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100mgrass feeder.

,

Manhattan	
sites.	
collection	
pasture	
planted	
in	
differentialis	
/ <u>Melanoplus</u>	
s p.	
Food ingestion:	Kansas. 1966.
14.	
Table]	

	of crops con	taining	plant pa	rts, pol	Percent pollen, fu	ie 'snbu	thropod pa	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents		the share of the second second		Instars				Adul ts
a	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(30)	4(9)	5(4)	Male(6)	Female(5)
		Collec	Collection site I	Ш				
Perennial grasses Agropyron smithii Bromus inermis	18 16	00	00	22 7	12 37	33 0	0 16	40 20
<u>Annual grass</u> Setaria <u>lutescens</u>	2	0	0	<i>ო</i>	0	0	0	۰.
Unidentified orasses	12	0	0	11	0	0	33	20
<u>Vernonial forb</u> Vernonia baldwini	N	0	0	с	0	0	0	0
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	53	0	0	48	62	99	83	20
Unidentified forbs	9	0	0	11	0	0	0	0
Fungus	40	0	0	48	12	0	83	20
Arthropod parts	12	0	0	0	25	0	20	20
Empty crops	6	0	0	10	11	25	0	0
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(54) (11)							

Table 14. (Cont.)

All Interast and Addits $(0)(a)$ (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (a)	Crop Contents	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining r	olant pa	Per irts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fur rs	iqus, at	cthropod pa	rts, or emp Adults	ΙĘ
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(1)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(0)	Female(0)	1
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	tion sit	II e					
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Perennial grass Bromus inermis	100	0	0	100	0	0	0	0	
Collection site IV (2)(a) (5) (63) (1) (0) B5 100 100 84 80 100 0 $\frac{15}{10}$ 0 0 84 80 100 0 0 $\frac{115}{10}$ 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 $\frac{115}{10}$ 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 0	Arthropod parts Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	$\begin{pmatrix} 1 & 0 \\ (1) \\ (-1 & 00) \end{pmatrix}$	0	0	100	0	0	0	0	1
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	tion sit	ce IV					
B5 100 100 84 80 100 15 0 0 6 0 0 5 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0			(2)(a)	(2)	(68)	(8)	(1)	(0)	(0)	
15 5 0 0 6 0 0 11 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0	<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	85	100	100	84	80	100	0	0	
5 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	<u>Digitaria sanguinalis</u> <u>Eragrostis cilianencis</u>	н 2	00	00	50	00	00	00	00	
1 0 0 20 0 1 0 0 20 0	Unidentified grasses	5	0	0	9	0	0	0	0	
1 0 0 2 0 0	<u>Annual forb</u> <u>Kochia scoparia</u>	1	0	0	0	20	0	0	0	
	Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	

(Cont.)
14.
ole

Crop Contents	Percent of cro.s containing plant muts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or Instars	taining	plant po	rts. pol Instars	Percent pollen, fur rs	n us. an	thropod pa	rts, or empty Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(2)(a)	2(5)	3(68)	4(8)	5(1)	Male(0)	Female(0)
		Collec	tion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	nt.)			
Pollen	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts	66 17	100	20	20	8000	00	00	00
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-forb Index(b)	32 (84) (-93)	0	50	33	37	0	0	0
		Collec	Collection site V	εV				
		(3)(a) (1)	(1)	(11)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(1)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	93	100	100	78	100	0	0	0
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	Q	0	0	11	0	0	0	0
<u>Annual forb</u> <u>Ambrosia</u> <u>artemisiifolia</u>	9	0	0	11	0	0	0	0
Unidentified forbs	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	100
Fungus Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	33 11 (17) (-73)	66 0	00	22 18	100	00	00	00

<u></u>
÷
C
0
Q
\sim
_*
4.
14.
-
-
-
-

All Instars I(0)(a) 2(4) and Adults I(0)(a) 2(4) collection sit acea 73 action 1 acea 73 action 1 acea 1 action 1	and a second sec	Percent of crows containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or Testare	taining r	olant pa	rts, po	Percent pollen, fung	us, an	rthropod p		empty
Collection site VI al 73 0 25 6 8 8 13 al 73 0 75 74 73 73 73 73 al 1 0 0 75 74 73 73 73 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	crop contents	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(4)	3(69)	4(213) 5(123)	Male(84)	Female(1:	32)
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	cion sit	e VI					
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Perennial orasses Dromus incrnis Phalaris arundinacea Soartina occtinata Soorobolus asocr	73 8 1 1	0000	25 75 0	6 74 0	8 1 1	8 74 0	13 73 1 0		5 <u>5</u> 0 0
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Annual grasses Digitaria sanguinalis Setaria lutescens	1 1	00	00	0	1	1 1			
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Unidentified grasses	8	0	0	10	8	ŝ	7		œ
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosla psilostachya</u> <u>Convolvulus arvensis</u> <u>Polygonum pensylvanicum</u>	7 7 7	000	000	100	0 4 6	110	000		100
4 0 0 6 2	Annual forbs Ambrosia artemisiifolia Kochia sconaris Lactuca scariola	777	000	000	0 4 0	л 5 0	0 1 0	1 1		0 1 1
	Unidentified forbs	4	0	0	9	2	9	1		7

	5
	8
1	-
	4
	1 e
	2
	, rd

All Instars		I	rts, poll Instars	en, func	lus, ar	thropod pa	of croos containing glant parts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars Instars
and Adul	All Instars and Adults $1(0)^{(a)}$ $2(4)$ $3(69)$ $4(213)$ $5(123)$ Wale(84) Female(132)	2(4)	3(69)	1(213) 5(123)	Male(84)	Female(132)
	Collect	Collection site VI (cont.)	VI (co	1t.)			
Fundus 42	0	25	38	43	40	38	49
Arthronod parts	0	0	9	n	£	~~1	4
Emoty crops 12	0	0	14	10	12	6	18
Total specimens analyzed (625) Grass-Forb Index(b) (-84)							

Manhattan, Kansas.	
sites.	
collection	
pasture	
planted	
in	
sanquinipes	
Melanoplus	
γd	
ingestions	
Food	1965.
Table 15.	

Grop Contents	Percent of cro s containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining p	olant pa	Pe rts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fu rs	ngus, a	rthropod pa	urts, or emp Adults	oty
	All Instars and Adults	1(2)(a)	2(1)	3(8)	4(11)	5(21)	Male(6)	Female(12)	
		Collect	Collection site	e I					
Perennial grasses Agrooyron smithii Bromus incrmis	9 15	000	000	0 16	520	11 11 a	33	53 8	
<u>Sorgnastrum nutans</u> Annual grass	T	>	>		>	r	>	>	
Setaria lutescens	Û	0	0	16	0	0	· 16	8	
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Medicago sativa</u>	7 5	00	00	00	00	11 11	16 16	00	
<u>Biennial forb</u> <u>Cirsium undulatum</u>	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	œ	
<u>Annual forbs</u> Lespedeza <u>stipulacea</u> Solanum carolinens <u>e</u>	45 3	00	00	20	66 11	52 0	33	25 8	
Fungus	37	00	100	33	11	41	50	41 16	
archropou parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forh Index(b)	16 (61) (27)	00	0	25	18	19	0	0	

Table 15. (Cont.)

Grop Contents	of crons con	itaining p	lant pa	rts. pol Instars	Percent pollen. fur rs	re 'snbu	rthropod pa	Percent of crops containing plant parts, polled, fundus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(11)	5(9)	Male(20)	Female(11)	
		Collect	Collection site II	e II					
Perennial grass Bromus inermis	27	0	0	0	20	14	26	20	
Personial forbs Ambrosia ssilostachya Wedicago sativa Melilotus alba	2 15 57	000	000	000	0 25 37	005	6 13 46	0 20 70	
Unidentified forbs	7	0	0	0	0	0	13	10	
Pollen	5	0	0	0 0	12	0	9 00	0 0	
Fungus Authorood conto	CE 1		00	0 0	10	10	200	07	
Emoty crops	21	00	0	0	27	22	25	6	
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	(51) (53)								
		Collect	Collection site III	e III					
		(6) ^(a)	(2)	(2)	(9)	(6)	(1)	(3)	
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Andropogon gerardi</u> <u>Poa pratensis</u>	35 3 35	00	00	50	040	0	20 100	00	
<u>Annual grașs</u> Bromus jap <u>oni</u> cu <u>s</u>	53	100	100	20	40	62	0	66	

(Cont.)	-
e 15.	
Tabl	1

	Percent of crors containing plant parts, pollen,	taining p	olant pa	rts, pol		rgus, ar	fungus, arthropod parts, or	rts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars	1 1			
	All Instars and Adults	1(6) ^(a)	2(5)	3(2)	4(6)	5(9)	Male(7)	Female(3)
		Collect	tîon sît	Collection site III (cont.)	ont.)			
Perennial forbs Convelvulus arvensis Taraxacum officinale	9 22	00	20	00	0	12 37	20	3 3 33
<u>Annual forb</u> <u>Euchorbia</u> spp.	Q	0	0	0	0	25	0	0
Pollen	9	0	0	0	0	12	0	33
Fungus Arthronod narts	C7	99 0	04 C	000	0 07	ŋ c	07	
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	18 (38)	50	0	0	16	11	28	0
Grass-Forb Index(b)	(-52)							
		Collect	Collection site	e IV				
		(1) ^(a)	(2)	(11)	(6)	(11)	(3)	(2)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	60	0	100	75	62	50	50	40
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Bromus jaconicus</u>	n	0	0	0	12	0	0	0
<u>Perennial forb</u> Convolvulus arvensis	ę	0	0	0	0	0	0	20

nt.
<u></u>
5.
le l
ab

	Jo		1	Per	Percent			
Crop Contents	NOT CLODE COU	d bururph	n an c	Instars	ren, ru	nqus, ar	turopoa pa	ou vrous conteining prant parts, pollen, rungus, artnropod parts, or empty Instars
	All Instars and Adults 1(1)(a)	1(1)(a)	2(2)	2(2) 3(11)	4(9) 5(11)	5(11)	Male(3)	Female(5)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	nt.)			
Annual forbs								
Ambrosia artemisiifolia	20	0	0	25	12	0	20	40
Kochia scoparia	10	0	0	0	12	25	0	20
Lactuca scariola	Ю	0	0	0	0	25	0	0
Unidentified forbs	16	100	0	12	12	0	50	20
Pollen	16	0	0	25	12	25	20	0
Fungus	33	100	50	25	25	50	50	20
Arthropod parts	20	0	0	25	37	25	0	0
Empty crops	28	0.	0	27	11	63	33	0
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(42) (~20)							

 (a) Actual number of grasshoppers examined; not a percentage.
 (b) percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder;
 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100mgrass feeder.

Crop Contents	Percent of crows containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or Instars	ntaining n	olant pa	rts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fur rs	iqus, a	rthropod p	irts, or empty Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(0) ^(a)	2(0)	3(4)	4(8)	5(7)	Male(15)	Female(11)	
		Collect	Collection site	e I					
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Agropyron smithii</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	21 28	00	00	33 66	57 28	14 14	13 33	10 20	
Unidentified grasses	4	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Medicago satiya</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	4 2 7	000	000	000	000	14 14	000	10 10	
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stioulacea	59	0	0	0	42	57	73	70	
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens 2021yzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	54 28 6 (45) (14)	000	000	22 O 33	42 28 12	85 42 0	46 26 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	
		Collect (a)	Collection site II (a)	II a					
		(0)	(2)	(38)	(36)	(88)	(33)	(31)	
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	38	0	0	42	27	54	38	32	

Cont.)	
16. (0	
Table	

	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen,	putaining	olant pe	rts, pol		ngus, al	cthropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	s 1(0)(a)	2(2)	3(38)	4(36)	5(33)	Male(33)	Female(31)
		Collec	tion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)			
Unidentified grasses	Ţ	0	0	ю	ę	0	0	0
Perennial forbs	Ĭ		c		`	c		a
Ambrosia psilostachya	9 [0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0			0 16
Melilotus alba	47	00	0	39	41	54	50	56
Unidentified forbs	6	0	100	e	17	0	11	12
nollon	0	0	0	c	e	0	0	4
Fundrie	48	0	100	45	44	62	53	36
Arthropod parts	27	0	0	9	20	25	46	48
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	(173) (29)							
		Collec	Collection site IV	te IV				
		(0) ⁽³⁾	(2)	(22)	(2)	(4)	(8)	(1)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	74	0	0	81	20	100	50	100
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Digitaria sanguinalis</u>	т	0	50	0	0	0	0	0
Unidentified grasses	7	0	50	0	25	0	0	0

Table 16. (Cont.)

Crop Contents	of crors con	taining p	lant p	Per arts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fu rs	igus, a	rthropod pa	Percent of crors containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(2)	1(0)(a) 2(2) 3(22)	4(5)	5(4)	Male(3)	Female(7)
		Collect	ion si	Collection site IV (cont.)	ont.)			
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Convolvulus arvensis</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	11 3	00	20	66	25	00	00	00
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Kochia scoparia</u> Lactuca scariola	с с С	00	00	00	25	00	00	00
Unidentified forbs	7	0	0	6	0	0	50	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimes analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	44 14 (43) (-56)	000	100	6 6 OS	23 23 23	66 33 25	100 0 33	500
		Collect	Collection site V	te V				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(3)	(12)	(10)	(2)	(10)
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus incrnis	83	0	0	100	100	77	100	60
Unidentified grasses	2	0	0	0	0	22	0	0

4
1.00
<u> </u>
0
ŏ
\sim
~ ~
•
0
~
-
0
-ω
-
9
- and the
- C
- Ľ
-

	of crops con	taining p	lant oa	Per rts, pol	Percent pollen, fu	nqus, ar	thropod pa	Percent of crops containing plant arts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults 1(0) ^(a) 2(0) 3(3) 4(12) 5(10) Male(7) Female(10)	1(0) ^(a)	2(0)	3(3)	4(12)	5(10)	Male(7)	Female(10)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site V (cont.)	lt.)			
<u>Perennial forbs</u> Ambrosia psilostachva	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	10
Vernonia baldwini	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	20
<u>Annual forb</u> Ambrosia artemisiifolia	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	10
Unidentified forbs	10	0	0	0	0	33	0	10
Fungus	43	0	0	100	25	66	57	10
Arthropod parts	18	0	0	0	0	22	42	20
Empty crops	11	0	0	0	33	10	0	0
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(42) (-68)							

 (a) Actual number of grasshoppers examined; not a percentage.
 (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder; preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Manhattan, Kansas.	
sites.	
collection	
pasture	
planted	
in	
deorum	
Ageneotettix	
Y	
ingestions t	
Food	1965.
Table 17.	

	Percent of comparing the parts wollow.	n Dainict	lant na	Per Per		Te subt	funcus. arthropod parts. or	rts. or empty
Crop Contents	100 SOD TO	A WITTITPO	1011 0110 1	Instars				
	All Instars and Adults	1(0) ^(a)	2(1)	3(3)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(3)	Female(1)
		Collection site	ion sit	e I				
Perennial grasses Acropyron smithil Bromus inermis	28 28	00	0 100	33 33	00	00	0 20	00
Unidentified grasses	28	0	0	0	0	0	50	100
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	14	0	0	33	0	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens Analyzed Gasa-Porb Index (Balyzed	42 14 12 (8) (-71)	000	100	000	000	000	3300	100 100
		Collect	Collection site	te II				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(0)	(11)	(13)	(11)	(12)
Perennial grass Bronus inermis	94	0	C	0	100	06	06	100
Unidentified grasses	2	0	0	0	0	0	10	0
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Ascleviodora</u> <u>viridis</u>	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	10

t.)
Con
17
ble
0

	of cross containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Annual Content of the second parts, or empty the second seco	taining p	olant pa	Per parts, pol	rercent pollen, fu	nqus, ar	thropod pa	rts, or empty
Crop contents	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(11)	5(13)	Male(11)	All Instars and Adnits 1(0) ^(a) 2(0) 3(0) 4(11) 5(13) Male(11) Female(12)
		Collect	tion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	ont.)			
Fungus	39	0	0	0	71	45	40	10
Arthropod parts	10	0	0	0	14	18	0	IO
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	19 (47)	0	0	0	36	15	6	16

(3) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage. (b) percent of species ingresses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 775 to 26=mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring 735ses; -76 to -100=grass feeder.

1966.								
c the second secon	of crops con	itaîning p	lant par	Per Per Thetare	Percent pollen, fur	iqus, ar	thropod pa	Percent Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, funcus, arthropod parts, or empty Tortare
crop contents	All Instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)}$	2(0)	3(1)	4(0)	5(1)	Male(5)	Female(6)
		Collect	Collection site	н				
Perennial grasses Agropyron smithii Bromus inermis	46 46	00	00	100	00	0 100	60 40	33 50
Unidentified grasses	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	16
Fungus Total specimens analyzed Crass-Forb Index(b)	69 (13) (-100)	0	0	0	0	0	80	83
		Collect	Collection site II	e II				
		(2) ^(a)	(4)	(1)	(13)	(11)	(<i>21</i>)	(21)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	89	100	100	100	100	94	62	88
Unidentified grasses	£	0	0	0	0	5	4	80
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Melilotus</u> spp.	С	0	0	0	0	2	12	0
Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	0	0	0	4	0

				per	1			-	3
	of crops containing plant parts, pollen. Instars	taining pl	ant par	rts, pol Instars		nqus, a	cthropod pe	fungus, arthropod parts, or emper	3
Crop contents	All Instars and Adults	1(2) ^(a)	2(4)	3(7)	4(13)	5(17)	Male(27)	Female(51)	
		Collecti	on site	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)				
Fungus Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens apjlyzed	1 56 10 (121) (121)	0000	0050	0 0 8 0	0 46 0 0	0 4 0 5 0	0 66 11	208 208 1	1
Grass-Forb Index.		Collection site	ion sit	e IV					
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(2)	(9)	-
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	0	0	0	0	0	100	100	
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimus Apalyzed	87 25 27 (11) (-100)	000	000	000	000	000	100 100	80 40	
VAS114 ATA + 505 TA		Collect	Collection site V	te V					
		(5)(a)	(1)	(7)	(18)	(36)	(61)) (34)	
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Bouteloua curtipendula <u>Bromus inermis</u> Poa pratensis	1 86 7	0 66 33	0 100	0 100	0 73 20	9 06	1 32 5	0 9 0	0 7 7

/

Table 18. (Cont.)

	of crops con	taining r	lant pa	rts, pol	pollen, fu	ngus. a	rthropod pa	of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
crop contents	All Instars and Adults	1(5)(a)	2(1)	3(7)	4(18)	5(36)	Male(61)	All Instars $d_{12} = \frac{1}{2(1)} \frac{1}{2(1)} \frac{1}{2(1)} \frac{1}{2(1)} \frac{1}{2(1)} \frac{1}{2(2)} \frac{1}{2(2)}$
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site V (cont.)	t.)			
<u>Annual grass</u> Bromus japonicus	4	0	0	0	13	e	l	9
Unidentified grasses	4	0	0	0	0	С	7	e
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	1	0	0	0	0	0	Ţ	0
Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	0	0	ю	1	0
Fungus	55	33	100	25	26	58	57	67
Arthropod parts	14	0	0	0	9	9	19	22
Empty crops	15	40	0	42	16	13	14	8
Grass-Forb Index (b)	(201)							

(b)Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage. (b)Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Table 19. Food ingestions by <u>Syrbula admirabilis</u> in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas. 1966.

and the second sec	Percent Af Amono containing all ant marts, pollen. fungus, arthropod parts, or empty.	taining han	t narts	Percent.	nt n. fun	dus. at	thropod pa	rts, or emp	>
Cron Contents		IN A LIVE IT DO	Ins	Instars				Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(6) ^(a) 2(18)		3(10)	4(9)	5(11)	Male(26)	Female(11)	
		Collection site I	site I						
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Agropyron smithii	66			55	833	70	64	72	
Andropogon gerardi	en ç	20	0 :	0 (00	0 0	16	0 0	
Bromus inermis Sorghastrum nutans			17	¹ 0	16	0	4	6	
Annual grasses	0	C	0	22	0	0	0	0	
Setaria lutescens	1	0	n N	0	0	0	0	0	
Unidentified grasses	7	0	11	11	0	0	8	6	
<u>Annual forb</u> Lesnedeza stimulacea	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	6	
	-		C	0	0	10	0	0	
Pollen	- 61	00	, 6	0	0	10	12	0	
rungus Arthronod marts	4		0	11	0	10	4	6	
Aruntopod parta Emoty crops	· 00		5	10	33	6	0	0	
Total specimens analyzed	(16)								

Table 19. (Cont.)

	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen.	taining p	olant pa	rts, pol	Percent pollen, fu	ngus, ar	thropod par	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				STTIDE
	All Instars and Adults	1(2)(a)	2(5)	3(3)	4(4)	5(3)	Male(2)	Female(2)
		Collect	Collection site II	e II				
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100
Fungus Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	10 9 (21) (-100)	00	00	00	00	33.0	100	00
		Collect	Collection site III	ie III				
		(4) ^(a)	(10)	(15)	(1)	(4)	(13)	(4)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Andropogon scoparius	22	0	0 9	0	0 0	0 1	0 ç	25 F.O
Bouteloua curtipendula	46	50	42	000	o c	ဂုင	01	000
Koeleria cristata	2 64	0	0	10	0	0	0	0
Poa pratensis	12	50	14	10	0 0	00	0 0	25
Sorghastrum nutans Sporobolus asper	0 0	0 25	14 0	00	00	00	00	
Annual grasses Aristida oligantha Setaria lutescens	23 10	00	0 28	30 10	00	25 0	0 20	0 25

Table 19. (Cont.)

Crop Contents	of crows con	taining p	lant p	Pero Instars	Percent pollen, fu ars	ngus, a	rthropod pa	of crois containing plant parts, pollon, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Adults
	All Instars and Adults $1(4)^{(a)} 2(10) 3(15) 4(1) 5(4)$	1(4)(a)	2(10)	3(15)	4(1)	5(4)	Male(13)	Female(4)
		Collect	ion si	Collection site III (cont.)	ont.)			
Unidentified grasses	73	0	0	0	ο.	0	10	0
<u>Biennial forb</u> Cirsium undulatum	2	0	0	0	0	25	0	0
Pollen Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(12) (12)	0	0	0	0	20	10	0
		Collect	Collection site IV	te IV				
		(0) ^(a) (7)	(2)	(2)	(7)	(8)	(2)	(4)
Perennial grass Bromus Inermis	100	0	100	100	100	100	100	100
Fungus Arthropod parts	'm or	00	00	00	14 0	20	00	0 25
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(33)							

(b) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage. (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Kansas.	
Manhattan,	
sites.	
collection	
i pasture	
n planted	
admirabilis i	
Syrbula	
γd	
ingestions	
Food	1966.
20.	
able ?	

	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen.	taining pl	lant par	Pero		qus, ar	thropod oa	fungus, arthropod oarts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				en Thou
	All Instars and Adults	1(4)(a)	2(3)	3(4)	4(9)P	5(6)	Male(3)	Female(1)
		Collect	Collection site	I				
Perennial grasses	C	c	C	цС	14	100	33	100
Agropyron smithil	50	0 0		ç Ç	11	0,1	0	0
Andropogon gerardi	ς, τ Γ	001		25	11	0	66	0
Bromus Inermis	- 6		C	52	0	0	0	0
Schedonnardus paniculatus Sorghastrum nutans	იო	0	0	0	11	0	0	0
<u>Annual grass</u> Setaria lutescens	т	0	50	0	0	0	0	0
Unidentified grasses	11	0	0	25	22	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens (b)	38 3 (30)	0 0 75	33 0 0	000	22 0 0	16 0	966 33	000
prass-rord Illuex	204	Collect	Collection site	lI e				
		(1) ^(a)	(0)	(1)	(2)	(2)	(4)	(2)
Perennial grass Bromus inermis	06	100	0	100	100	100	100	20
Unidentified grasses	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	. 20

Crop Contents	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen, Instars	taining p	olant pa	per rts, pol Instars		igus, ar	fungus, arthropod parts, or Adults	rts, or empty Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(1)(a)	2(0)	3(1)	4(2)	5(2)	Male(4)	Female(2)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site ll (cont.)	nt.)			
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total. specimens analyzed Craas-Porb Index(b)	80 10 16 (12) (-100)	100 0	000	100 0	100	000	100 0 25	20 20
		Collect	Collection site lV	e lV				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(9)	(2)	(2)	(1)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	0	0	100	100	100	100	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Porb lndex ^(b)	100 11 18 (11) (-100)	000	000	100 33	100 0	100 50 0	100	000
		Collect	Collection site V	Ve				
		(2) ^(a)	(1)	(4)	(1)	(1)	(2)	(0)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Bouteloua curtipendula</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	7 85	00	0 100	0 100	0	00	14 85	00

	of crons con	taining pl	ant par	ts, pol	Percent pollen, fur	Igus, al	rthropod pa	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	$1(2)^{(a)}$	2(1)	3(4)	4(1)	5(1)	Male(7)	Female(0)
		Collection site V (cont.)	ion site	V (con	t.)			
Unidentified forbs	7	0	0	0	0	100	0	0
1	C d	0	C	75	С	100	42	0
Fungus	2	0	0	0	0	0	14	0
Arturopod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	12 (16) (-85)	100	0	0	0	0	0	0
VANIL ATA 1. 660 TO		Collection site VI	ion sit	IN e				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(3)	(9)	(13)	(8)	(3)
Perennial grasses	Q	C	C	33	33	41	37	66
Bromus inernis Phalaris arundinacea Snoroholus asner	31 15	000	00	33 33	50	41 16	12 25	00
<u>Annual grass</u> Digitaria sanguinalis	ы	0	0	0	0	0	12	0
Unidentified grasses	6	0	0	0	16	œ	0	, 33
Fungus Arthropod parts	37 3	00	00	66 0	50	80	37 12	100

	of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or empty Addits	arts, or emp Adults
Crop Contents	All Instars and Adults 1(0)(a) 2(0) 3(3) 4(6) 5(13) Male(8) Female(3)	Female(3)
	Collection site VI (cont.)	
Empty crops Trial snecimens analyzed	3 0 0 0 7 0 (33)	0

75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining pl	ant par ¹ Ir	Percent irts, pollen, Instars	ent en, func	gus, arth	rropod part	irts, or empt Adults
Crop contents	All Instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)}$	2(1)	3(0)	4(3)	5(2)	Male(3)	Male(3) Female(1)
		Collect	Collection site II	e II				
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	42	0	0	0	0	100	33	0
Perenhial forb	42	0	0	0	0	0	66	100
squoj peijiqu	14	0	0	0	100	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	42 42 114 15)	000	0 0 100	000	000	100 100 0	0 33 33	000

0 retroit ut spunter any off the feature of the seder; for 0.25-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Manhattan, Kansas.
n sites.
collection
pasture
planted
in
packardii
<u>Mel anoplus</u>
þλ
d ingestions 6.
Food 1966.
22
Table 22.

	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Addute	taining pl	ant part	Percent	ent en, fun	gus, art	thropod parts	rts, or empty
Cros Contents		1	UI	Instars			NON	1 13
	All Instars and Adults	1(2) ^(a)	2(5)	3(31)	4(32)	5(37)	Male(17) Female(26)	:emale(26)
		Collect	Collection site II	II é				
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus inermis	ю	0	20	0	с	ß	Q	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> <u>Medicaqo satiya</u> Walilotus sop.	85 4 2 85	0 100	0 0 0	4 4 100	6006	88 C O	0 68 6	0 8 79
Unidentified forbs	ę	0	20	0	9	S	9	12
			c	c	(*	C	0	0
Pollen	31	100	60	34.0	22 0	0 00 u	12	66 25
Arthropod parts	6 0	00	00	22 O	n 10	nœ	5	7
Emoty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index ^(b)	(150) (94)							
		Collec	Collection site IV	e IV				
		(5) ^(a)	(3)	(3)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bronus inermis	16	40	0	0	0	0	0	0

(Cont.)
22.
Table

	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or empty Addits	aining pl	ant par	Percent parts, pollen. Instars	ent en. func	gus, arth	ropod part	rts, or empty Adults
Crop Contents	All Instars and Adults $1(5)^{(a)} 2(3) 3(3) 4(1) 5(0)$	1(5) ^(a)	2(3)	3(3)	4(1)	5(0)	Male(0)	Male(0) Female(0)
		Collect	tion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	nt.)			
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u> Convol vulus arvensis	66 33	60 40	66 33	66 0	0 100	00	00	00
Unidentified forbs	25	20	33	33	0	0	0	0
Fungus Total specimens analyzed	16 (12)	40	0	0	0	0	0	0
Grass-Forb Index(b)	(22)							

(a) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage. (b) percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Gron Contents	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen. Instars	taining pla	int part	Percent rts, pollen, Instars		jus, ar	fungus, arthropod parts, o Adults	or empty ts
	All Instars and Adults	1(5)(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(2)	5(4)	Male(10) Female(17)	1e(17)
		Collection site	n site	I				
Perennial orasses Acronyron smithii Bromus inermis Srochastrum mutans	32 32 10	0 50 0	000	000	0 100	000	20 50 10	62 25 6
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Bronus japonicus</u> <u>Setaria lutescens</u>	01 V	00	00	00	00	00	00	6 12
Unidentified grasses	Û	20	0	0	0	0	10	0
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza <u>stipulacea</u>	16	60	0	0	0	25	20	0
Unidentified forbs	N	0	0	0	0	25	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty cropod parts Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Indax(b)	32 10 (38) (-65)	000	000	000	000	000	10 10	62 18 5
		Collection site II	ion sit	e II				
		(1) ⁽³⁾	(0)	(2)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> Ruomic incomis	75	0	0	100	100	0	0	0

.

Table 23. (Cont.)

Crop Contents	of crops con	taining pl	ant par I	rts, poll Instars	en, fun	gus, art	of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or Instars	rts, or empty Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(1)(a)	2(0)	3(2)	4(1)	5(0)	Male(0)	Female(0)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)			
Unidentified forbs	25	100	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fungus Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	75 (4) (-50)	0	0	100	100	0	0	0
		Collection site III	ion sit	ie III				
		(0) ^(a)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(1)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Poa pratensis</u>	20	0	0	0	0	0	100	0
<u>Annual grass</u> Setaria lutescens	50	0	100	0	0	0	0	0
Unidentified grasses	50	0	0	0	0	0	100	0
Pollen	50	0	0	0	0	0	100	0
Fungus	50	0	0	0 (0 0	0 0	100	00
Arthropod parts Total specimens applyzed Grass-Forb Index	(2) (2) (100)	Þ	Þ	c	Þ	þ	T	Þ

75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

	of crons containing plant parts.	taining pl	ant par	Percent ts, pollen,	ent en. fur	funqus, ar	arthropod parts,	rts, or empty
Crop Contents	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(1)	3(10)	4(6)	5(13)	Male(24) Female(19)	emale(19)
		Collection site	ion site					
Perennial crasses Acronoron smithii Andronoron gerardi Bromus inermis	49 1 18	000	000	11 0 0	66 0	50 25 25	58 0 25	52 0 21
<u>Annual grass</u> Setaria lutescens	4	0	0	0	0	0	œ	2
Unidentified grasses	21	0	0	44	33	16	12	21
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza <u>stioulacea</u>	12	0	100	44	16	œ	4	Ω
Unidentified forbs	1	0	0	0	16	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimes apalyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	63 25 (73) (-78)	000	100	55 11 10	33 66	58 41 7	70 25 0	57 21 0
		Collection site	ion sit	۸ د				
		(0)(a)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(2)	(3)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Bouteloua curtipendula	60	0	0	0	0	0		66

Table 24. (Cont.)

Crop Contents	of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fundus, arthropod parts, or emoty Instars	aining pl	ant par Ti	Jarts, pollen, Instars	en, func	jus, arti	ropod parts Adu	rts, or empty Adults
	All Instars and Adults 1(0)(a) 2(0) 3(0) 4(0) 5(0)	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(2) Female(3)	Female(3)
		Collection site V (cont.)	on site	V (cont	(.			
<u>Perennial grasses</u> (cont.) <u>Bromus inernis</u> Poa pratensis	20 20	00	00	00	00	0 0	20	33 0
Unidentified grasses	20	0	0	0	0	0	50	0
Fungus Total specimens analyzed Grase-Firih Indax(b)	20 (5) (-100)	0	0	0	0	0	20	0

(a) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage. (b) percent of species ingoesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Contrasta	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining pl	lant part In	Percent rts, pollen. Instars	ent en, func	jus, art	hropod parts. Adu	ts, or empty Adults
CTOP CONTENTS	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a) 2(1)	2(1)	3(1)	4(0)	5(2)	Male(0) Female(2)	cmale(2)
	Ō	Collection site II	site II					
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	66	0	0	0	0	100	0	50
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Melilotus</u> spp.	66	0	0	0	0	100	0	20
Unidentified forbs	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	50
Pollen Fungus Arthropod parts	33 100 33	000	100	0000	0000	0 100 100	0000	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	50 (6) (34)	0	100	D	Þ	D D		

(b) Accurt of parasity answers and the percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; (b) Percent of species ingesting garses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder 75 to 26=mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100=grass feeder.

	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or	taînîng p	lant par	Per ts, pol	Percent pollen. fur	iqus, ar	thropod pe	rts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars		1		Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(6)	3(20)	4(18)	5(2)	Male(1)	Female(14)
		Collect	Collection site I	I				
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Agropyron smithii</u>	9	0	20	D	D.	0	0	0
<u>Unidentified grasses</u>	4	0	0	11	0	0	0	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia osilostachya</u> <u>Medicago sativa</u>	19 2	00	0 20	17 0	22	00	00	25 0
<u>Annual forb</u> stipulacea	65	0	60	64	99	20	100	75
Unidentified forbs	œ	0	0	5	11	50	0	0
Fungus Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index ^(b)	38 7 (51) (79)	00	60 16	23	4 ⁴ 0	00	100	0 0
		Collect	Collection site	e II				
		(1)(a)	(10)	(21)	(13)	(1)	(0)	(2)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	31	0	12	26	50	0	0	100

+00	;
Ľ	Ś
26	5
c	μ
Tabl	201

Grop Contents	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or Instars	taining n	olant pa	rts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fur rs	re supr	thropod par	rts, or empty Adults	
	All Instars and Adults	1(1)(a) 2(10)	2(10)	3(21)	4(13)	5(1)	Male(0)	Female(2)	
		Collect	tion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)				
<u>Perennial forbs</u> Ambrosia psilostachya	12	0	25	ß	20	0	0	0	
Medicago sativa Melilotus spp.	2 58	00	0 62	5 73	40	100	00	00	
Unidentified forbs	6	100	12	10	0	0	0	0	
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Canass-Forb Index(b)	39 17 144 (48) (47)	100 0 0	37 0 20	21 23	23 3 0 5 3 0	100 0	000	100 0	
		Collect	Collection site IV	e IV					
		(0)(a)	(2)	(4)	(8)	(1)	(0)	(0)	
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	44	0	100	50	33	0	0	0	
<u>Perennial forb</u> Convolvulus <u>arvensis</u>	22	0	0	25	33	0	0	0	
<u>Annual forbs</u> <u>Ambrosia artemisiffolia</u> <u>Kochia scoparia</u>	22 11	00	00	0	0 0	00	00	00	

	e			Per	Percent		the second the	+
Crop Contents	OI CTODS COL	LCALDING D	or an c ba	Instars	ni 'uar	nqus, di	Pd DodoJUD	of croos containing plant parts, puten, rungus, artiropog parts, or empiry Instars
	All Instars and Adults $1(0)^{(a)} 2(2) 3(4) 4(3) 5(1)$	1(0) ^(a)	2(2)	3(4)	4(3)	1	Male(0)	Male(0) Female(0)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	nt.)			
Unidentified forbs	11	0	0	0	0	100	0	0
Fungus	44	0	100	25	33	100	0	0
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	10) (11)	0	20	0	0	0	0	0
		Collect	Collection site V	eν				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(0) ^(a) (0) (0)		(0) (0)	(1)	(0)
<u>Annual forb</u> <u>Kochia scooaria</u>	100	0	0	0	0	0	100	0
Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	(1) (100)							

Table 26. (Cont.)

(b) Actual number of grasshoppers examined; not a percentage. (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 75 to 25=mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100=grass feeder.

Food ingestions by <u>Chortophaga viridifasciata</u> in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas. 1965. Table 27.

Cron Contents	Percent of crows containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining p	olant pa	Per rts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fu rs	ngus, a	rthropod pa	irts, or (Adults	empty
	All Instars and Adults	1(9) ^(a) 2(11)	2(11)	3(3)	4(1)	5(3)	Male(8)	Female(16)	(9)
		Collect	Collection site I	e I					
<u>Perennial grasses</u> Agropyron smithii Bromus inermis	20 10	14 0	0 28	00	00	00	28 14		18 18
<u>Annual grasses</u> <u>Bromus japonicus</u> <u>Setaria lutescens</u>	00-	00	00	00	00	00	0 14		.90
Unidentified grasses	15	0	14	0	100	0	28		12
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Medicago sativa</u>	64	14	0	0	0	0	0		0
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	41	42	44	0	0	50	28		40
Unidentified forbs	7	28	0	0	0	50	0		0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	17 5 21 (51)	14 14 22	42 0 36	000	100 0 0	0 33 0	14 14 12		900
Grass-Forb Index ^(b)	(12)								

(Cont.)	
27.	
Table	

All Instars and Adults Instars (0) ^(a) Instars (0) Instars (1) Instars Instars (1) Instars </th <th></th> <th>of crops cor</th> <th>itaining p</th> <th>lant par</th> <th>Per rts, pol</th> <th>Percent pollen. fur</th> <th>nqus, a</th> <th>rthropod pa</th> <th>Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty</th>		of crops cor	itaining p	lant par	Per rts, pol	Percent pollen. fur	nqus, a	rthropod pa	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
All Instars $1(0)^{(a)}$ $2(0)$ $3(0)$ $4(1)$ $5(0)$ Male(1) Female collection site II collection site II 100 0 100 100 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (-100) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (-100) (0)^{(a)} (0) (0) (0) 1 1 (-100) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (-100) (0)^{(a)} (0) (0) (0) 0 1 1 (-100) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 (-100) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 (-100) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) 0 1 1 (-100) 0 0	Crop Contents				Instars			-	Adults
Collection site II 100 0 0 0 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1 33 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (3) (3) 0 0 0 0 0 1 (33) 0 (0) (0) (0) (0) 1 1 (100 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) 1 1 $(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) 1 $	والمحمومات المالي المحاولة والمحاولة المحاولة المحاولة والمحاولة المحاولة المحاولة المحاولة المحاولة المحاولة	All Instars and Adults	1(0) ^(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(1)	5(0)	Male(1)	Female(1)
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	cion site	II e				
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	0	0	0	100	0	100	100
$(0)^{(a)}$ (0) (0) (0) (0) 100 0 0 (0) (0) (0) 100 0 0 0 0 0 1 (-100) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (-100) (0) (0) (0) (0) 0 0 0 0 (-100) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (-100) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) 0 <td>Fungus Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)</td> <td>33 (3) (-100)</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>100</td>	Fungus Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	33 (3) (-100)	0	0	0	0	0	0	100
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collect	tion sit	III e				
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			(0) ^(a)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(1)
$\begin{array}{c} (1) \\ (-100) \\ \text{Collection site IV} \\ (0)^{(a)} (0) (0) (3) (1) (0) \\ 92 & 0 & 0 & 66 & 100 & 0 \\ 7 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 33 & 0 & 0 \end{array}$	<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Poa gratensis</u>	100	0	0	0	0	0	0	100
(0/a) (0) (0) (3) (1) (0) 92 0 0 66 10 0 1 7 0 0 0 33 0 0 1	Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	(1)							
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			Collec.	tion sit	e IV				
92 0 0 0 66 100 0 7 0 0 0 33 0 0			(o)(a)	(0)	(0)	(3)	(1)	(0)	(6)
7 0 0 0 33 0 0	Perennial grass Bromus inermis	92	0	0	0	66	100	0	100
	Unidentified forbs	7	0	0	0	33	0	0	0

Cont.
\sim
. *
27
Φ
-
2
10
H

Crop Contents	of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining p	lant par	rts, pollen, Instars	len, fur	iqus, ar	thropod pa	rts, or em Adults
-	All Instars and Adults 1(0) ^(a) 2(0) 3(0) 4(3) 5(1) Male(0) Female(9)	1(0) ^(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(3)	5(1)	Male(0)	Female(9
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site IV (cont.)	nt.)			
Fungus Total specimens apalyzed	15 (13)	0	0	0	33	0	0	11

. rercent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. Juu to A5-forb feede 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100-grass feeder.

Manhattan,	
sites.	
collection	
pasture	
planted	
in	
viridifasciata	
Chortophaga vi	
γd	
Food ingestions	Kansas, 1966.
Table 28.	

	eccent of cross containing alot marts, pollon, fungues, arthropod parts, or	taining n	lant nar	Pero	Percent pollen fur	Otts. a	rthropod pa	rts. or emptv	
Crop Contents		A Forester was		Instars					
	All Instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)}$	2(0)	3(0)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(11)	Female(6)	
,		Collect	Collection site I	H					
Perennial grasses Agropyron smithii Bromus inermis	29 2 3	00	00	00	00	00	36 18	16 33	
Annual grass Setaria lutescens	11	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	
Unidentified grasses	23	0	0	0	0	0	18	33	
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	17	0	0	0	0	0	18	16	
Fungus Arthropod parts Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index	70 58 (17)		00	00	00	00	63 63	50	
		Collect	Collection site II	e II					
		(0)(a)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(1)	(2)	
Perennial grass Bronus inermis	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	50	
Unidentified grasses	66	0	0	0	0	0	100	50	

Table 28. (Cont.)

	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen,	taining p	lant pa	rts, pol		ngus, an	thropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or emoty
Crop contents				Instars				Adults
	All instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)}$	2(0)	3(0)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(1)	Female(2)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)			
Fungus Arthropod parts Total specimens apalyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	100 66 (-100)	00	00	00	00	00	100 100	100 50
		Collect	Collection site IV	e IV				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(0)	(0)	(2)	(0)	(2)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	0	0	0	0	100	0	100
<u>Annual grass</u> Digitaria sanguinalis	33	0	0	0	0	100	0	0
Fungus Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	66 25 (4) (-1 ⁰⁰⁾	00	00	00	00	100 50	00	000
		Collect	Collection site V	e V				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(8)	(4)	(1)	(2)	(2)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u> <u>Poa pratensis</u>	61 15	00	00	33 33	66 0	100	75 0	50

~
Cont.
28.
able

Crop Contents	of crops containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars	taining p	lant par	Instars	len, fur	igus, ar	thropod pa	rts, or empt Adults
	All Instars and Adults $1(0)^{(3)} 2(0) 3(3) 4(4) 5(1)$	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(3)	4(4)	5(1)	Male(5)	Female(2)
		Collect	ion sit(Collection site V (cont.)	t.)			
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Bromus japonicus</u>	7	0	0	0	33	0	0	0
Unidentified grasses	15	0	0	33	0	0	25	0
Fungus	46	0	0	0	0	100	75	100
Arthropod parts	15	0	0	0	0	0	25	50
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	(15) (15)	0	0	0	25	0	50	0

 (a) Actual number of grasshoppers analyzed; not a percentage.
 (b) Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 75 to 26=mixed feeder; referring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; referring grasses; -76 to -100mgrass feeder.

Manhattan, Kansas.	
sites.	
e collection	
pasture	
planted	
ŗ	
bivittatus	
noplus	
y Mela	
ingestions b	
Food	1965.
8	
Table	

Cron Contents	Percent of crops containing plant parts, pollen, Instars	itaining p	lant pa	Per rts, pol Instars		igus, ai	thropod pa	fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Adults	l tv
	All Instars and Adults	1(6)(a) 2(17)	2(17)	3(2)	4(0)	5(0)	Male(0)	Female(0)	
		Collect	Collection site I	e I					
Perennial orasses Agrooyron smithii Bromus inermis	7 14	00	11 22	00	00	00	00	00	
Unidentified grasses	21	50	0	100	0	0	0	0	
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Medicago sativa</u>	7	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	
<u>Annual forb</u> Lespedeza stipulacea	42	25	55	0	0	0	0	0	
<u>Unidentified forbs</u>	7	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Cross-Erch Tudev(b)	35 14 44 (25)	33 25 25 33 26	33 11 47	100 50	000	000	000	000	
		Collect	Collection site II	ie II					
		(o) ^(a)	(0)	(0)	(1)	(3)	(4)	(4)	
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus inermis	81	0	0	0	100	66	66	100	

Table 29. (Cont.)

	Percent of croos containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty	taining p	lant oa	rts, pol	Percent pollen, fur	iqus, ar	thropod pa	rts, or empt
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	$1(0)^{(a)}$ $2(0)$ $3(0)$ $4(1)$ $5(3)$	2(0)	3(0)	4(1)	5(3)	Male(4)	Female(4)
		Collect	ion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)			
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Kelilotus</u> spp.	6	. 0	0	0	0	33	0	0
Unidentified forbs	6	0	0	0	0	0	33	0
Emoty crops Total specimens agglyzed Grass-Forb Index	8 (12) (-63)	0	0	0	0	0	25	0
		Collection site III	ion sit	e III				
		(0) ^(a) (2)	(2)	(2)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Poa pratensis</u>	33	0	0	0	100	0	0	0
<u>Annual grass</u> <u>Bromus laoonicus</u>	66	0	0	100	0	0	0	0
Empty crops Total specimens apalyzed Grass-Forb Index(b)	40 (5) (-100)	0	100	0	0	0	0	0

Cont.
29.
Table

				Per	Percent			
Crop Contents	of crons con	taining p	olant pa	Jarts, pol Instars	len, fur	iqus, ar	thropod pa	of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(2)	3(3)	4(2)	5(0)	Male(0)	All Instars and Adults $1(0)(a) 2(2) 3(3) 4(2) 5(0)$ Male(0) Female(0)
		Collect	Collection site IV	e IV				
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	100	0	0	100	100	0	0	0
<u>Perennial forb</u> Convolvulus arvensis	50	0	0	66	0	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Empty crops Total specimes analyzed Grass-Forb Index ^(b)	50 25 42 (7)	000	100 0	0 33 0	000	000	000	•••

(a) Actual number of grasshoppers examined; not a percentage.
 (b) percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 76=forb feeder; 75 to 26=mixed feeder; referring forbs; 25 to -25=mixed feeder; -26 to -75=mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100=grass feeder.

	of crops co	ntaining n	plant pa	Per rts, pol	Percent pollen, fur re	iqus, az	thropod pa	Percent of cross containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instance
Urop Contents	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(1)	3(2)	4(1)	5(0)	Male(0)	Female(0)
		Collect	Collection site I	Н Н				
<u>Perennial orass</u> Bromus inermis	50	0	0	0	100	0	0	0
Unidentified grasses	50	0	0	100	0	0	0	0
Empty crops Total specimens analyzed Grass-Forb Ind <u>ex(b</u>)	50 (4) (-100)	0	100	50	0	0	°	0
		Collec	Collection site II	e II				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(8)	(3)	(3)	(2)	(1)
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus <u>inermis</u>	44	0	0	1 00	0	0	100	100
<u>Perennial forb</u> <u>Melilotus</u> spp.	44	0	0	0	0	100	50	0
<u>Unidentified forbs</u>	11	0	0	0	50	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts	66 44	00	00	100	50 0	66 0	100	100 100

,

Food ingestions by Melanoplus bivittatus in planted pasture collection sites. Manhattan, Kansas. Table 30.

and and and a second	of crons cor	taining p	lant pa	rts. pol	Percent pollen. fur	e snbi	rthropod pa	of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty
Crop Contents				Instars				Adults
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a) 2(0)	2(0)	3(3) 4(3)	4(3)	5(3)	Male(2)	Female(1)
		Collect	tion sit	Collection site II (cont.)	nt.)			
Empty crops Total specimens apglyzed Grass-Forb Index (b)	25 (12) (11)	0	0	66	33	0	0	0
		Collect	Collection site IV	e IV				
		$(2)^{(a)}$ (0)	(0)	(2)	(2)	(3)	(0)	(0)
<u>Perennial grass</u> Bromus inermis	50	100	0	0	0	66	0	0
Unidentified grasses	33	0	0	0	100	0	0	0
<u>Annual forb</u> Ambrosia <u>artemisiifolia</u>	16	0	0	0	0	33	0	0
Unidentified forbs	16	0	0	0	0	33	0	0
Fungus Empty crops Total specimens analyzed	33 33 (9) (9)	20 0	00	0100	100	00	00	00

Table 30. (Cont.)

Table 30. (Cont.)

Crop Contents	of crons con	taining p	lant pa	rts, pol Instars	Percent pollen, fur rs	iqus, ar	thropod pa	Percent of crons containing plants, pollen, funcus, arthropod parts, or empty Instars
	All Instars and Adults	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(3)	4(8)	5(0)	Male(0)	Female(0)
		Collect	Collection site V	e V				
<u>Perennial grass</u> <u>Bromus inermis</u>	06	0	0	100	87	0	0	0
<u>Perennial forbs</u> <u>Solidago missouriensis</u> <u>Vernonia baldwini</u>	10	00	00	20	12	00	00	00
<u>Annual forb</u> <u>Ambrosia artemisiifolia</u>	10	0	0	0	12	0	0	0
Fungus Arthropod parts Enty cross Total specimes Grass-Forb Index(b)	50 20 (11) (-60)	000	000	33 0 20	0 52 0	000	000	000
		Collection site VI	ion site	IV e				
		(0) ^(a)	(0)	(0)	(1)	(0)	(0)	(2)
<u>Perennial grasses</u> <u>Browus inermis</u> <u>Phalaris arundinacea</u>	66 33	00	00	00	100	00	00	50
<u>Unidentified forbs</u>	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	50

Cont.)
e Se
able

and and a	Percent of crons containing plant parts, pollen, fungus, arthropod parts, or empty Instants Thereas Adults	taining r	olant pa	rts, pol Tnetare	Percent pollen. fur rs	igus, ar	thropod pa	rts, or emp Adults
orob contentes	All Instars And Adults 1(0) ^(a) 2(0) 3(0) 4(1) 5(0) Male(0) Female(2)	1(0)(a)	2(0)	3(0)	4(1)	5(0)	Male(0)	Female(2)
		Collect	tion sit	Collection site VI (cont.)	nt.)			
Arthropod parts Total specimens analyzed Grace-Forn Indew(b)	33 (3) (-67)	0	0	0	0	0	0	20

(D)Percent of species ingesting grasses subtracted from percent ingesting forbs. 100 to 70-forb feeder; 75 to 26-mixed feeder preferring forbs; 25 to -25-mixed feeder; -26 to -75-mixed feeder preferring grasses; -76 to -100^{-g}rass feeder.

Summary of grasshopper species collected and crops analyzed from each 1965 planted pasture collection site. Manhattan, Kansas. Table 31.

Grasshopper		Collect	Collection sites		Species
species	F.	II	III	IV	total
Acridinae					
Ageneotettix deorum	80	47	0	0	55
Boonedon gracile	14	0	0	0	14
Eritettix simplex	2	2	31	0	38
Mermiria maculipennis	0	1	0	0	1
Mermiria neomexicana	0	9	0	0	9
Orohulella speciosa	434	62	06	213	662
Pseudooomala brachvotera	0	7	0	0	7
Syrbula admirabilis	16	21	51	80	171
Oedipodinae					
Arphia conspersa	0	0	9	0	9
Arphia simplex	24	11	2	7	44
	25	13	0	0	38
Chortophaga viridifasciata	21	e	1	13	63
Encoptolophus sordidus costalis	12	0	0	1	13
Hadrotettix trifasciatus	0	0	1	0	1
Hipoiscus rugosus	38	4	2	0	44
Pardalophora aoiculata	0	0	I	0	1
Pardaloohora haldemanii	10	17	5	e	35
Cyrtacanthacridinae					
Campylacantha olivacea	10	1	0		12
	0	5	0 0	2 0	4 0
	I ,	9	0	2	- T
Hesperotettix viridis viridis	T	'	1	8	-

Table 31. (Cont.)

Grasshopper		Collecti	Collection sites		Species
species	Ι	II	III	IV	total
Cyrtacanthacridinae (cont.)					
Melanoplus bivittatus	25	12	£	7	49
Melanoplus differentialis	101	12	0	24	137
Melanoplus confusus	0	2	0	0	2
Melanoplus femurrubrum	748	143	0	290	1181
Melanoplus keeleri	0	9	0	0	9
Melanoplus packardii	0	10	0	0	10
Melanoplus sanquinipes	61	T	38	42	141
Phoetaliotes nebrascensis	20	ę	11	12	43
Schistocerce lineata	7	ı		ſ	7

Summary of grasshopper species collected and crops analyzed from each 1966 planted pasture collection site. Manhattan, Kansas Table 32.

Grasshopper		Co	Collection sites	tes		Species
species	Ι	II	IV	Λ	IN	total
Acridinae						
Ageneotettix deorum	13	121	11	162	0	307
Boooedon gracile	2	0	0	0	0	ŝ
Boooedon nubilim	25	0	0	0	0	25
Dichromoroha viridis	0	1	0	0	37	38
Eritettix simplex	0	1	0	1	0	0
Mermiria maculipennis	0	7	0	0	0	7
Mermiria neomexicana	0	7	0	0	0	7
Oceia obscura	0	12	0	0	0	12
Orohulella speciosa	463	Ð	461	752	7	1688
Pseudopomala brachyptera	0	4	0	0	0	4
Syrbula admirabilis	30	12	11	16	33	102
Oedipodinae						
<u>Arphia</u> simplex	1	13	1	0	-	16
Arphia xanthoptera	11	n	i m	12	4 0	28
Chortoohaga viridifasciata	17	С	4	15	0	68
Dissosteira carolina	4	1	0	0	0	ŝ
Encoptoloohus sordidus	21	0	0	0	0	21
Hadrotettix trifasciatus	0	11	0	0	0	11
Hippiscus rugosus	73	0	0	5	0	78
Pardalophora apiculata	0	4	0	0	0	4
Pardelophora haldemanii	12	16	0	0	0	28
Cyrtacanthacridinae						
Campylacantha olivacea	80	7	0	0	0	10
<u>Hesperotettix viridis pratensis</u>	e	0	0	0	0	c)

Table 32. (Cont.)

Grasshopper		Co	Collection sites	tes		Species
Species	I	II	IV	>	Ν	total
Cyrtacanthacridinae (cont.)						
Melanoplus bivittatus	4	12	6	11	ю	39
Melanoplus differentialis	54	1	84	17	625	781
Melanoplus femurrubrum	268	122	267	227	78	962
Melanoplus keeleri	51	48	10	1	0	110
Melanoolus packardii	0	150	12	0	0	162
Melanoplus sanguinipes	45	173	43	42	0	303
ⁿ hoetaliotes nebrascensis	0	898	8	1	. 89	975

Grass-Forb Index $^{(a)}$ rating for each grasshopper species at each 1965 planted pasture collection site. Manhattan, Kansas. Table 33.

		Colle	Collection sites	
urassnopper species	I	II	III	IV
Acridinae				
Ageneotettix deorum	-71	-95	1	,
Boopedon gracile	-63	1	1 0	
Eritettix simplex	-100	-100	001-	•
Mermiria maculioennis	I	-100	1	1
L'ermiria neomexicana	1	-67	8 0	1 2
Orphulella soeciosa	-71	-99	1.6-	96-
Decudonomal a hrachvotera	I	-86	1	
Svrbula admirabilis	-91	-100	-98	-100
Oedîpodînae				1
Arnhia conspersa	ı	,	-00	1
Arphia simplex	-48	-100	-100	1 0
Arnhia vanthontera	-45	-85	t	00T-
Chontonhada viridifasciata	12	-100	-100	C8-
CLOPED AND A PROPERTY	-100	,	ı	r
	1	67	t	r
	-65	-50	-100	1
	, 1	r	-100	
Pardalophora dpiculata	-66	-100	-100	-100
TTIBILATION PTONOTION				
Cvrtacanthacridinae				
Campylacantha olivacea	100	100		1
Hesperotettix speciosus	1	100	1 1	1
	1	nnt	1	t
Hesperotettix viridis viridis	1	t		

Table 33. (Cont.)

Carachonnow		Collect	Collection sites	
species	I	11	III	IV
Well and the hinit + tathe	42	-63	-100	-50
	T	1.00	1	I
	œ	40	ł	-100
olanoolus fomismubanim	62	26	-26	-19
al anon inc bool or i	11	34	ł	1
-1	ı	15	ı	1
There is a second and the second and	77	53	-52	-20
best an UDD US Sallyu LLUSS	13	-94	-100	-100
Schistocerca lineata	84	-100	1	I

Table 34. Grass-Forb Index^(a) rating for each grasshopper species at each 1966 planted pasture collection site. Manhattan, Kansas.

VI	-100 -100 -84 -96		-67 -84
tes V		-100 -100 -100 -100	
Collection sites IV	-100 -100 -100 -100		1 1 0 C 1 1 0 1 1
II C		-85 -33 -100 -100 -100 -100 -64	100 11 100
Ι	-100 -100 -100 -100 -100 -100 -100 -100	-100 -40 -71 -65 -65 -73 -73	100 1000 -100
Grasshopper species	Acridinae Ageneotottix deorum Boopedon gracile Boopedon ubilim Dichromorbha viridis Eritettix simplex Mermiria maculipennis Mermiria normoxicana Osfia obscura Orbhula la speciosa Pseudoromala brachyntera Syrbula admirabilis	Ocdipodinae Arphia simplex Arphia simplex Chortophaca viridifasciata Dissosteira carolina Encoptolophus sordidus Hippiscus ruoosus Pardalophora aniculata Pardalophora haldemanii	<u>Cyrtacanthacridinae</u> Campylacantha <u>olivacea</u> Hesperotettix viridia pratensis Melanobus bivittatus

Table 34. (Cont.)

Gracebonner		0	Collection sites	tes	
species	Ι	II	IV	Λ	IV
UNTECENTIACTIOINEE (CONC.)	75	60	-37	-22	-63
Malananine kaalani	52	47	11	100	1
Malanaulue machandii	1	94	75	1	I
	14	29	-56	-68	1
<u>Metanoutus sangurnitoss</u> Phoetaliotes nebrascensis		-96	-100	-100	-95

upon the fungus. Such is also suggested by Mulkern, <u>et. al.</u> (1962). In most instances, uptake of fungus was highest during early instars (Tables 7 to 30). Several possibilities are suggested: (a) grasshopper preference toward fungus; (b) a search for moisture within damp plant residues; and, (c) lack of mobility of early instars thus forcing them to eat nearby funguscovered olant residues.

Ingestion of fungus by adults collected from overgrazed western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza, collection site I (Table 1) and overgrazed smooth brome, collection site IV (Table 4) increased greatly during the drought period of late July, August, and September, 1966. In these areas at this time pasture condition was very poor with little living vegetation present, thus forcing grasshopper feeding upon dead plant materials.

Ingestion of arthropod parts also varied with grasshopper species (Tables 7 to 30). However, the Oedipodinae and Cyrtacanthacridinae, in general, showed higher ingestion rates of arthropod parts than did the Acridinae. Such arthropod fragments were most often legs, antennae, wings, and scales of Diptera, Lepidoptera, and Orthoptera. In a few instances whole mites or spiders were found. Lavigne and Pfadt (1962) concluded that many grasshoppers actively seek injured or dead insects for food or moisture. The actual role of such materials in the grasshopper diet is unknown, however. Mulkern, <u>et. al.</u> (1962) suggest that the widespread ingestion of such materials by certain grasshopper species seems to indicate that they may play a significant part in the nutrition of those species.

Females of some species, notably <u>Orphulella soeciosa</u> and <u>Syrbula</u> <u>admirabilis</u>, ingested a greater volume of plant material than did males. Kaufmann (1965), in studying Bavarian grasshoppers, also recorded greater food ingestion by females of many species. His studies showed, however,

that males of these same species assimilated a larger percent of ingested food than did the females. Thus, less volume of food was required by the males. This author suggests that the smaller size of the males of most species must also be taken into consideration.

The severe drought period of 1966 (Table 3, Appendix) afforded an opportunity to study grasshopper feeding reactions to drought stresses. During this period, no significant changes in food plant preferences were, noted. Little variance in pasture condition was noted on those areas under good grazing management. Sites I and IV were, however, overgrazed throughout the study period, accompanied by greatly decreased pasture conditions. As the vegetation dried, the grasshopper population largely migrated into lower areas of green vegetation. By late July, 1966, the vegetation within these areas was largely dried. At this time, there was a significant increase in ingestion by grasshoppers of fungus-covered plant residue and arthropod parts. The proportion of empty crops also increased greatly, often to 50 percent of those examined. By mid-August, 1966. overall arasshopper numbers had greatly declined.

Acridinae

A total of 3288 grasshopper crops representing 11 species were analyzed during 1965 and 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from -63 to -100 during the two year period, indicating a high preference for grasses. Acridinae species represented 40 percent of the individuals collected throughout 1965; 38 percent during 1966.

Acceneotettix deorum. Crop analysis was conducted on 55 specimens during 1965; 307 during 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from -71 to -100 over the two years, indicating a grass feeder (Tables 17 and 18). Grass ingestion

percentages generally ranked closely with relative abundance of species of grasses present. In western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1), however, specimens ingested smooth brome at a level indicating selection for that plant.

The species maintained itself relatively well during the 1966 drought period, with numbers declining only slightly as the drought continued. Ingestion of fungus and arthropod parts greatly increased during this period.

This species was collected largely from unpastured smooth brome collection site II (Table 2) and moderately grazed smooth brome collection site V (Table 5). No specimens were found in Kentucky bluegrass collection site III (Table 3) or reed canarygrass collection site IV (Table 4).

<u>Boopedon gracile</u>. Crop content analyses were completed on 14 specimens during 1965 and 5 specimens during 1966. The data are not tabled. The grassforb index for the specimens analyzed was -100 indicating a grass feeder. The ingested grasses were western wheatgrass, smooth brome, and yellow bristlegrass (<u>Setaria lutescens</u>). <u>B. gracile</u> was found only at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1).

<u>Boomedon nubilim</u>. Grop contents of 25 specimens collected at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) were analyzed but the data are not tabled. The grass-forb index for the specimens analyzed was -100, placing it in the grass feeder group. The ingested grasses were western wheatgrass and smooth brome.

<u>Dichromorpha viridis</u>. Crop contents of 38 specimens were analyzed. Of these, 37 were collected at reed canarygrass-smooth brome collection site VI (Table 6). No food ingestion tables are included. The grass-forb index for the specimens studied was -100 with reed canarygrass and tall dropseed (<u>Sporobolus asper</u>) being most often ingested. <u>Eritettix simplex</u>. Forty specimens were analyzed as to crop contents. Of these, 31 were collected during 1965 from Kentucky bluegrass collection site III (Table 3). Crop analyses data are not tabled. All grass-forb indices were -100 with Kentucky bluegrass and sideoats grama most often ingested.

Mermiria maculipennis. Crop analysis was conducted upon 8 specimens, all found at smooth brome-sweetclover site II (Table 2). Data are not tabled. The grass-forb index placed it in the grass feeder group with smooth brome most often ingested.

Mermiria neomexicana. Eleven specimens were analyzed for crop contents with smooth brome being most often ingested. Specimens were found only at smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2). Data are not tabled.

<u>Opeia obscura</u>. Twelve specimens were found during 1966 at smooth bromesweetclover collection site II (Table 2). The grass-forb index for the specimens was -100 with smooth brome most often ingested. Data are not tabled.

<u>Ornhulella sneciosa</u>. A total of 799 crops were analyzed during 1965; 1688 during 1966 (Tables 7 and 8). The grass-forb indices ranged from -71 to -100 over the two years, thus designating it as a grass feeder. Ingestion percentages of cultivated grasses ranked closely with relative abundance of the grass species present. Thus, this species showed definitely higher ingestion percentages of western wheatgrass in site I; of smooth brome in collection sites II, IV, and V; and of Kentucky bluegrass and sideoats grama in site III.

The species was found in all tame pasture sites with the exception of reed canarygrass-smooth brome collection site VI (Table 6), being most abundant in moderately grazed smooth brome collection site V (Table 5). overgrazed smooth brome collection site IV (Table 4) and western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1). It was first in overall order of abundance.

This species seemed better able to sustain itself throughout the drought period of 1966 than most other species studied. Numbers declined only slightly as the drought continued. Ingestion of fungus and arthropod parts greatly increased during the drought period.

<u>Pseudonomala brachvotera</u>. Crop content analyses were conducted on 7 specimens during 1965 and 4 during 1966. The data are not tabled. All specimens were collected from ungrazed smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2), and had ingested smooth brome.

<u>Syrbula admirabilis</u>. Crop content analysis was conducted on 171 specimens during 1965; 102 during 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from -85 to -100 over two years, indicating it was a grass feeder (Tables 19 and 20). This species was found in all collection sites with grass ingestion percentages ranking closely with relative abundance of species of grasses present.

Oedipodinae

Crop contents of 481 specimens representing 9 species were analyzed during 1965 and 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from 12 to -100 over the two years. Oedipodinae species were generally classed as grass feeders or mixed feeders preferring grasses. Species of this subfamily represented 9 percent of the individuals collected throughout 1965; 4 percent during 1966.

Arphia conspersa. Crop contents of 6 specimens were analyzed during 1965. No specimens were found during 1966. The data are not tabled.

The grass forb index for the specimens analyzed was -60 indicating a mixed feeder preferring grasses. Kentucky bluegrass was most commonly ingested.

Arphia simplex. Crop analysis was conducted on 44 specimens during 1965 and 16 specimens during 1966. Data are not tabled. Grass-forb indices normally ranged from -85 to -100 during the two year period, thus establishing This species seemed better able to sustain itself throughout the drought period of 1966 than most other species studied. Numbers declined only slightly as the drought continued. Ingestion of fungus and arthropod parts greatly increased during the drought period.

<u>Pseudopomala brachvotera</u>. Crop content analyses were conducted on 7 specimens during 1965 and 4 during 1966. The data are not tabled. All specimens were collected from ungrazed smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2). and had ingested smooth brome.

<u>Syrbula admirabilis</u>. Crop content analysis was conducted on 171 specimens during 1965; 102 during 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from -85 to -100 over two years, indicating it was a grass feeder (Tables 19 and 20). This species was found in all collection sites with grass ingestion percentages ranking closely with relative abundance of species of grasses present.

Oedipodinae

Crop contents of 481 specimens representing 9 species were analyzed during 1965 and 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from 12 to -100 over the two years. Oedipodinae species were generally classed as grass feeders or mixed feeders preferring grasses. Species of this subfamily represented 9 percent of the individuals collected throughout 1965; 4 percent during 1966.

Arnhia conspersa. Crop contents of 6 specimens were analyzed during 1965. No specimens were found during 1966. The data are not tabled.

The grass forb index for the specimens analyzed was -60 indicating a mixed feeder preferring grasses. Kentucky bluegrass was most commonly ingested.

<u>Arphia simplex</u>. Crop analysis was conducted on 44 specimens during 1965 and 16 specimens during 1966. Data are not tabled. Grass-forb indices normally ranged from -85 to -100 during the two year period, thus establishing it as a grass feeder. In western-wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) during 1965, however, the grass forb index was -48 because of a higher ingestion of Korean lespedeza. The grass-forb index for the same site during 1966 was -100.

Arphia xanthopera. Crop contents of 67 specimens were analyzed during the two year period. Data are not tabled. Grass-forb indices ranged from -33 to -100, indicating it to be a mixed feeder preferring grasses.

<u>Chortophaga viridifasciata</u>. Crop analysis was conducted on 68 specimens during 1965; 39 during 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from 12 to -100 over two years (Tables 27 and 28). Highest rates of forb ingestion occurred at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) where there was much feeding upon Korean lespedeza. Grasses were ingested at a high rate throughout all planted pasture collection sites.

Fungus and arthropod parts were commonly ingested, being at a higher rate during the drought period of 1966.

Dissosteria carolina. Crop content analysis was conducted on 5 specimens collected during 1966. Data are not tabled. Four specimens found at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) had ingested Korean lespedeza.

Encootolophus sordidus. Crop contents of 34 specimens were analyzed. Of these, 33 were collected at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1). No food indestion tables are included.

The grass-forb indices indicated that the species preferred grasses; these being ingested at a rate approximating the relative abundance of the species of grasses present. Korean lespedeza was the only forb ingested.

<u>Hadrotettix trifasciatus</u>. Crop analysis was done upon 12 specimens, 11 of which were found during 1966. Food ingestion tables are not included.

All specimens were collected at smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2). The grass-forb index for the specimens analyzed indicated a mixed feeder preferring grasses. Smooth brome was most commonly ingested.

<u>Hippiscus rugosus</u>. Crop content analysis was conducted upon 44 specimens during 1965; 78 during 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from -50 to -100 over two years, indicating a mixed feeder preferring grasses (Tables 23 and 24). Most specimens were taken from western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) where western wheatgrass was preferred. Ingestion rates of smooth brome and Korean lespedeza were comparable although the latter was more abundant within the collection site.

High ingestion rates of fungus and arthropod parts were recorded from third instar through adults.

<u>Pardalophora apiculata</u>. Crop contents of 5 specimens were analyzed. Data are not tabled. All specimens had ingested grasses and were found at smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2) and Kentucky bluegrass collection site III (Table 3).

<u>Pardalophora heldemanii</u>. A total of 35 crops were analyzed during 1965; 28 during 1966. Data are not tabled. Grass-forb indices ranged from -50 to -100 during the two years, thus designating it a mixed feeder preferring grasses. Grasses were normally ingested according to their relative abundance within the collection sites. Korean lespedeza and sweetclover were two most commonly ingested forbs in western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) and smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2).

Cyrtacanthacridinae

A total of 4766 grasshopper crops representing 13 species were analyzed during 1965 and 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from 100 to -100 indicating greatly diverse feeding habits. Most, however, were classed as forb feeders, mixed feeders, or mixed feeders preferring forbs. Cyrtacanthacridinae species represented 51 percent of the individuals collected during 1965; 58 percent during 1966.

<u>Campylacantha olivacea</u>. Crop analysis was conducted on 22 specimens during 1965 and 1966. Food ingestion tables are not included. The grassforb index for the specimens analyzed was 100 indicating a forb feeder. Western ragweed (<u>Ambrosia psilostachya</u>) was the primary host plant.

Twenty one specimens were collected at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) and smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2) where western ragweed was readily available.

<u>Hesperotettix speciosus</u>. Crop content analysis was completed on 4 specimens, all collected during 1965 from smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2) and smooth brome collection site IV (Table 4). Food ingestion tables are not included. The grass-forb index for the specimens was 100 indicating a forb feeder. Common ragweed (<u>Ambrosia artemisiifolia</u>), alfalfa, and sweetclover were ingested.

<u>Hesoerotettix viridis pratensis</u>. Crop content analysis was made on 12 specimens during 1965 and 1966, and data are not tabled. The grass-forb index for the specimens was 100 indicating a forb feeder. All specimens were found at western heatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) and smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2). Missouri goldenrod (<u>Solidaco missouriensis</u>) and baldwin ironweed (<u>Vernonia baldwini</u>) were ingested with most regularity. <u>Melanoplus bivittatus</u>. Crop content analyses was completed on 49 specimens during 1965 and 39 during 1966. Grass-forb indices ranged from 42 to -100 and varied with the collection site (Tables 29 and 30). In general, however, it was classified as a mixed feeder preferring forbs in those sites where forbs were abundant. In sites where forbs were not abundant, the species readily ingested grasses. Smooth brome seemed most preferred of the grasses.

<u>Melanoplus confusus</u>. Two specimens were found on smooth bromesweetclover collection site II (Table 2) during 1965. Both had eaten sweetclover. No food ingestion tables are included.

Melanoplus differentialis. Crop content analysis was conducted on 137 specimens during 1965; 781 during 1966. This species was found in all planted pasture sites with the exception of Kentucky bluegrass collection site III (Table 3), but was most abundant in reed canarygrass-smooth brome collection site VI (Table 6) where 625 specimens were taken during 1966.

Grass-forb indices (Tables 13 and 14) ranged from 40 to -100 with a two year average of -64 indicating a mixed feeder preferring grasses. The grass-forb index for specimens taken from reed canarygrass-smooth brome collection site VI (Table 6) was -84 with 73 percent of the specimens collected having ingested reed canarygrass (Fig. 7).

<u>Melanoplus femurrubrum</u>. Crop analysis was completed upon 2143 specimens during the two year study period. Specimens were found at all collection sites with the exception of Kentucky bluegrass collection site III (Table 3), but were most abundant in western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1). <u>M. femurrubrum</u> ranked second in overall abundance throughout the study.

The grass-forb indices ranged from 75 to -63 but generally indicated that the species was a mixed feeder preferring forbs (Tables 9 and 10). The grass-forb indices changed appreciably among the different collection sites.

In reed canarygrass-smooth brome collection site VI (Table 6) the grass-forb index was -63 (Table 10). This resulted from the high ingestions of reed canarygrass and smooth brome which had a high abundance rating in this site. In western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) the grass-forb index was 75 resulting from high ingestions of Korean lespedeza, the most abundant forb.

<u>Melanoplus keeleri</u>. Crop analysis was completed on 116 specimens, largely collected during 1966 from western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1) and smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2).

Grass-forb indices generally indicated this species to be a mixed feeder preferring forbs (Tables 25 and 26). Korean lespedeza and sweetclover were most often ingested.

<u>Melanoplus packardii</u>. Crop content analysis was conducted on 172 specimens during the two year study period. Of these, 162 were collected during 1966 and largely from smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2).

Grass-forb indices (Table 21 and 22) ranged from 15 to 94, the latter being the index for collection site II (Table 2). Sweetclover was the most commonly ingested plant.

<u>Melanoplus sanguinipes</u>. This species has been reported to have Caused heavy damage to grasslands of the United States during drought years. It was found in moderate numbers in all collection sites with the exception of reed canarygrass-smooth brome collection site VI (Table 6).

The grass-forb indices ranged from 53 to -68, but where most abundant this species was rated as a mixed feeder (Tables 15 and 16). Alfalfa, sweetclover, and smooth brome showed the greatest ingestion percentages.

Third instar to adult specimens ingested moderate amounts of fungus and arthropod parts. As with many other species, ingestion of fungus and arthropod parts increased during the 1966 drought period.

<u>Phoetaliotes nebrascensis</u>. Crop contents of 1018 specimens were analyzed during the two years. Of these, 898 specimens were collected during 1966 from smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2).

Grass-forb indices normally ranged from -95 to -100 indicating a grass feeder (Tables 11 and 12). The grass forb index for all specimens collected from smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2) was -95.

Schistocerca lineata. Seven specimens were found during 1965 at western wheatgrass-Korean lespedeza collection site I (Table 1); 5 from smooth bromesweetclover collection site II (Table 2). No specimens were found during 1966. Food ingestion tables are not included.

Crop content analysis showed ingestions of Korean lespedeza, baldwin ironweed, and smooth brome at collection site I (Table 1). All specimens analyzed from smooth brome-sweetclover collection site II (Table 2) had ingested smooth brome.

SUMMARY

The investigation to determine the feeding habits and behavior of grasshoppers in planted (tame) pastures of eastern Kansas was conducted during the frost-free seasons of 1965 and 1966. All pastures studied had vegetation consisting of one or more planted forage species not native to the study area. Emphasis was placed on the food preferences of the more common grasshopper species.

Crop content analyses indicated that grasshoppers, in general, are selective in their choice of food plants; the degree of selectivity varying with the grasshopper species. No significant changes in food plant preferences during various stages of the life cycles of the species studied were noted. Most Acridinae species were classified as grass feeders; grass ingestion percentages often ranking closely with relative abundance of grass species present within the grasshopper collection sites. Oedipodinae species were normally classed as grass feeders or mixed feeders preferring grasses. Cyrtacanthacridinae species had more diverse feeding habits. Crop analyses grass-forb indices of species of this subfamily ranged from 100 (forb feeder) to -100 (grass feeder). Most, however, were classed as forb feeders, mixed feeders, or mixed feeders preferring forbs. <u>Phoetaliotes nebrascensis</u> was the only Cyrtacanthacridinae species consistently classed as a grass feeder.

Some grasshopper species, as evidenced by numbers of individuals collected, had definite preferences for a particular planted pasture habitat. Those species consistantly ingesting high proportions of forbs were normally found in far greater numbers at planted pasture collection sites where such forbs were most available. <u>Gamoylacantha olivacea</u> was found only at collection sites where western ragweed, the preferred plant, was present. <u>Orphulella</u> <u>speciosa</u> was found at all grasshopper collection sites, but maintained highest populations in overgrazed and moderately grazed smooth brome and western wheatgrass grasshopper collection sites. <u>Ageneotettix deorum</u> was found most abundantly at ungrazed and moderately grazed smooth brome grasshopper collection sites.

Fungus and arthropod parts were commonly found in grasshopper crops; the ingestion rates varying with the grasshopper species. Of these materials, fungi was most often found. In some instances, fungus could be seen inclusive with plant fragments. At other times the crops contained fungus with little plant material present, indicating direct grasshopper feeding upon the fungus. Ingestion of fungus was greatest with early instars, although adults collected during the drought period of 1966 also had ingested large amounts.

Ingestion of arthropod parts also varied with grasshopper species. However, the Oedipodinae and Cyrtacanthacridinae normally showed higher ingestion rates than did the Acridinae. Such arthropod parts were most often fragments of Diptera, Lepidoptera, and Orthoptera. The proportion of arthropod fragment ingestions by many species increased during the drought period of 1966.

Pollen ingestions coincided with the maturity of the plants within the grasshopper collection sites.

A high percentage of first and second instar grasshoppers had empty croops as did the males of several species. The number of specimens with empty croops increased greatly during the drought period of 1966.

Females of <u>Orohulella speciosa</u> and <u>Syrbula admirabilis</u> ingested a greater volume of plant material than did the males. During the 1966 drought period, the volume of plant material ingested by specimens found in overgrazed sites generally declined.

LITERATURE CITED

- Anonymous. 1965. Losses in Agriculture. U. S. Dept. Agr. Res. Ser., Agr. Handbook No. 21. 120 p.
- Alexander, G. 1941. Keys for the identification of Colorado Orthoptera. Univ. Colo. Studies, Ser. D. 1(3):129-164.
- Anderson, N. L. and J. C. Wright. 1952. Grasshopper investigations on Montana rangelands. Mont. Agr. Exp. Sta. Bull. 486: 46 p.
- Arnett, W. H. 1960. Responses of Acridid populations to rangeland practices and range sites. Unpubl. Ph. D. dissertation, Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas.
- Ball, E. D., E. R. Tinkham, R. Flock and C. T. Vorhies. 1942. The grasshoppers and other Orthoptera of Arizona. Ariz. Agr. Exp. Sta. Tech. Bull. 93:255-373.
- Barkley, T. M. 1963. Manual of the Kansas flora. Dept. of Bot., Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas.
- Barnes, O. L. 1955. Effects of food plants on the lesser migratory grasshoppers. J. Econ. Ent. 48:119-124.

. 1959. Effect of cultural practices on grasshopper populations in alfalfa and cotton. J. Econ. Ent. 52:336-337.

- Beamer, R. H. 1915. Grasshoppers of Kansas II. The Oedipodinae of Kansas. Bull. Univ. Kans., Biol. Ser., Bull. Dept. Ent. 11:53-126.
- Bei-Bienko, G. Ya. and L. L. Mishchenko. 1951. Saranchevye faunny SSSR i sopredel'nykh stran. Akademiya Nauk Soyuza Sovetskikh Solsialislicheskikh Respublik, no. 38, 40. 639 p. (Locusts and grasshoppers of the U.S.S.R. and adjacent countries. no. 38, 400 p.; no. 40, 291 p. Translated by Israel Program for Scientific Translations, Jerusalem. 1963, 1964. Office of Technical Services, U. S. Dept. of Commerce, Wash. 25, D. C.
- Branson, F. A. 1942. A preliminary report of the insect orders found in various grassland habitats in the vicinity of Hays, Kansas. Trans. Kans. Acad. Sci. 45:189-194.
- Brett, C. H. 1947. Interrelated effects of food, temperature and humidity on the development of the lesser migratory grasshopper, <u>Melancolus</u> <u>mexicanus</u> (Saussure) (Orthoptera). Okla. Agr. Exp. Sta. Tech. Bull. T-26:1-50.
- Brooks, A. R. 1958. Acridoidea of southern Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba (Orthoptera). Can. Ent. 90, Suppl. 9:1-92.

Brunner, L. 1885. First contribution to a knowledge of the Orthoptera of Kansas. Bull Washburn Coll. Lab. Nat. Hist. 1:125-139.

. 1887. Second contribution to a knowledge of the Orthoptera of Kansas. Bull. Washburn Coll. Lab. Nat. Hist. 1:193-200.

- Brunson, A. M. and R. H. Painter. 1938. Differential feeding of grasshoppers on corn and sorghums. J. Amer. Soc. Agric. 30(4):334-346.
- Brusven, M. A. 1965. Taxonomic differentiation, ecology, and distribution of immature Acridinae of Kansas (Orthoptera:Acrididae). Kans. Agr. Exp. Sta. Tech. Bull. 749.
- Brusven, M. A. and G. B. Mulkern. 1960. The use of epidermal characteristics for the identification of plants recovered in fragmentary condition from the crops of grasshoppers. N. Dak. Agr. Exp. Sta. Res. Rept 3. 11 p.
- Buckell, E. R. 1921. The influence of locusts on the ranges of British Columbia. 51st Ann. Rept. Ent. Soc. Ontario, 1920:23-29.
- Cain, S. T. and G. M. de Oliverira Castro. 1959. Manual of vegetation analysis. Harper and Brothers Publ. New York. 325 p.
- Campbell, J. B. 1966. Acrididae-food plant associations in Flint Hillsbluestem pastures near Manhattan, Kansas. Unpubl. Ph. D. dissertation, Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas.
- Cantrall, I. J. 1943. The ecology of the Orthoptera and Dermaptera of the George Reserve, Michigan. Misc. Publ. Mus. Zool. Univ. Mich. 54: 182 p.
- Cleassen, P. W. 1915. Grasshoppers of Kansas. I. The <u>Melanopli</u> of Kansas. Bull. Univ. of Kans., Biol. Ser., Dept. of Ento. 11:5-50.
- Coppock, S. 1962. The grasshoppers of Oklahoma (Orthoptera:Acrididae). Okla. State Univ. Proc. Ser. p-299: 143 p.
- Coyner, W. R. 1939. A report of the effect of overgrazing on the Acrididae. Proc. Okla. Acad. Ser. 19:83-85.
- Criddle, N. 1917. Precipitation in relation to insect prevalence and distribution. Can. Ent. 49:77-80.

. 1931. Grasshopper control in Canada east of the Rocky Mountains. Dom. Dept. Agr. Bull. 143, new series.

. 1933. Studies in the biology of North American Acrididae. Development and habits. Proc. World's Grain Exhibition and Conference. Canada. 2:474-494.

Davies, L. 1959. The use of epidermal characteristics for the identification of grasses in the leafy stage. J. Brit. Grassland Soc. 14:7-16.

- Diver, C. and P. Diver. 1933. Contributions toward a survey of the plants and animals of South Haven Peninsula. Studland Health. Dorset. J. Animal Ecol. 2(1):36-39.
- Esau, Katherine. 1960. Anatomy of seed plants. John Wiley and Sons, Inc. New York. 376 p.
- Fernald, M. L. 1950. Cray's Manual of Botany. 8th ed. American Book Co., New York. 1632 p.
- Fraenkel, G. S. 1959. The raison d'entre of secondary plant substances. Sci. 129:1466-1470.
- Friauf, J. J. 1953. An ecological study of the Dermaptera and Orthoptera of the Welaka area in Northern Florida. Ecol. Monogr. 23:79-126.
- Froeschner, R. C. 1954. The grasshoppers and other Orthoptera of Iowa. Iowa State Coll. J. Sci. 29:165-354.
- Gates, F. C. 1936. Grasses in Kansas. Kansas State Board of Agriculture Report. Vol. 45, No. 220-A.
- Gurney, A. B. and A. R. Brooks. 1959. Grasshoppers of the <u>mexicania</u> group, genus <u>Melanoplus</u> (Orthoptera:Acrididae). Proc. U. S. Nat. Mus. 110:1-93.
- Handford, R. H. 1946. The identification of nymphs of the genus <u>Melanoplus</u> of Manitoba and adjacent areas. Sci. Agr. 26:147-180.
- Hanson, H. C. and C. T. Vorhies. 1938. Need for research on grasslands. Sci. Monthly 46:230-241.
- Hebard, M. 1925. The Orthoptera of South Dakota. Proc. Acad. Nat. Sci. Phila. 77:33-155.
- . 1929. The Orthoptera of Colorado. Proc. Acad. Nat. Sci. Phila. 81:303-425.
- . 1931. The Orthoptera of Kansas. Proc. Acad. Nat. Sci. Phila. 81:119-227.
 - . 1934. Dermaptera and Orthoptera in the Kansas State College Collection. Kans. Ent. Soc. J. 7:25-36.
- . 1936. Orthoptera of North Dakota. N. Dak. Agr. Exp. Sta. Eull. 284.66 p.
- . 1938. An ecological survey of the Orthoptera of Oklahoma. Okla. Agr. Exp. Sta. Tech. Bull. 5:1-31.
- Hermann, W. and R. Eslick. 1939. Susceptibility of seedling grasses to damage by grasshoppers. J. Amer. Soc. Agron. 31(4):333-337.

- Hinkle, G. A. 1938. The relation of grasshoppers with special emphasis on <u>Dissosteria lonoizennis</u> (Thos.) to native ranges of Colorado. Unpubl. M. S. thesis, Colo. State Univ., Fort Collins, Colo.
- Hitchcock, A. S. 1950. Manual of the grasses of the United States. 2nd ed. Rev. by Agnes Chase. U. S. Dept. Agr. Misc. Publ. No. 200. 1051 p.
- Isley, F. B. 1905. Notes on Kansas Orthoptera. Kans. Acad. Sci. Trans. 19:238-249.

. 1937. Seasonal succession, soil relations, numbers and regional distribution of northeastern Texas Acridians. Ecol. Monogr. 7:317-344.

______. 1938. The relations of Texas Acrididae to plants and soils. Ecol. Monogr. 8:551-604.

. 1944. Correlation between mandibular morphology and food specificity in grasshoppers. Ent. Soc. Amer. Ann. 38:47-67.

. 1946. Differential feeding in relation to local distribution of grasshoppers. Ecology 27:128-138.

- Isley, F. B. and G. Alexander. 1949. Analysis of insect food habits by crop examination. Science 109:115-116.
- Kaufmann, T. 1965. Biological studies on some Bavarian Acridoidea (Orthoptera) with special reference to their feeding habits. Ann. Ent. Soc. Amer. 58(6):791-801.
- Knutson, H. 1940. A key to the Acrididae (Orthoptera) of northeastern Texas with ecological notes. Field and Lab. 8:33-58.
- Langford, G. S. 1930. Some factors relating to the feeding habits of grasshoppers. Colo. Agr. Exp. Sta. Bull. 354:1-53.
- Launchbaugh, J. L. 1964. Characteristics of certain western Kansas range grasses and forbs. Cont. No. 192, Fort Hays Branch, Kans. Agr. Exp. Sta., Hays. Leaflet No. 102. 17 p.
- Lavigne, R. J. and R. E. Pfadt. 1964. The role of rangeland grasshoppers as scavengers. J. Kans. Ent. Soc. 37(1):1-4.
- Metcalfe, C. R. (1960). Anatomy of the Monocolytedons, Vol. I. Oxford University Press, London. 731 p.
- Mulkern, G. B. and J. F. Anderson. 1959. A technique for studying the food habits and preferences of grasshoppers. J. Econ. Ent. 52:342.
- Mulkern, G. B., J. F. Anderson and M. A. Brusven. 1962. Biology and ecology of North Dakota grasshoppers. I. Food habits and preferences of grasshoppers associated with alfalfa fields. N. Dak. Agr. Exp. Sta. Res. Rep. 7. 26 p.

- Mulkern, G. B., P. R. Toczek and M. A. Brusven. 1964. Biology and ecology of North Dakota grasshoppers. II. Food habits and preferences of grasshoppers associated with the Sand Hills Prairie. N. Dak. Agr. Exp. Sta. Res. Rep. 11. 59 p.
- Nerney, N. J. 1958. Grasshopper infestations in relation to range condition. J. Range Management 11:247.

. 1960. Grasshopper damage on short-grass rangeland of the San Carlos Apache Indian Reservation, Arizona. J. Econ. Ent. 53:640-646.

- Nittler, L. W. 1966. Seedling characteristics useful in identifying Kentucky bluegrass. Farm Res. 32(1):14-15.
- North Central Regional Publication No. 36. 1960. Weeds of the North Central States. Univ. of Ill. Agr. Exp. Sta. Cir. 718. 262 p.
- Odum, E. P. 1953. Fundamentals of ecology. W. B. Saunders Co., Phila. 338 p.
- Painter, R. H. 1953. The role of nutritional factors in host plant selection. Trans. IXth Internatl. Congr. Ent. 2:101-105.
- Parker, J. R. 1930. Some effects of temperature and moisture upon <u>Melanoplus</u> <u>mexicanus mexicanus</u> (Saussure) and <u>Gamnula pellucida</u> (Scudder) (Orthoptera). Mont. Agr. Exp. Sta. Bull. 223. 132 p.
- Parker, J. R., R. C. Newton and R. L. Shotwell. 1955. Observations on mass flights and other activities of the migratory grasshopper. U. S. Dept. Agr. Tech. Bull. No. 1109.
- Pfadt, R. E. 1949a. Food plants, distribution and abundance of the bigheaded grasshopper, Aulocara elliotti (Thos.). J. Kans. Ent. Soc. 22:69-74.

. 1949b. Food plants as vectors in the ecology of the lesser migratory grasshopper, <u>Melanoplus mexicanus</u> (Sauss.). Wyo. Agr. Exp. Sta. Bull. 290. 48 p.

. 1965. Key to Wyoming grasshoppers Acrididae and Tetrigidae. Wyo. Agr. Exp. Sta. Mim. Cir. 210. 21 p.

- Phillips Petroleum Company. 1963. Pasture and range plants. Bartlesville, Oklahoma.
- Pickford, R. 1963. Wheat crops and native prairie in relation to the nutritional ecology of <u>Campula pellucida</u> (Scudder) (Orthoptera:Acrididae) in Saskatchewan. Can. Ent. 95(7):764-770.
- Pruess, K. P. 1960. Key to plants based on epidermal characteristics. Ann. Rep. Nebr. Agr. Exp. Sta. Proj. 647.
- Putnam, L. G. 1954. Development of grasshopper research and control in Canada. Rept. Sixth Commonwealth Entomological Conf., London.

- Riegert, O. W., R. Pickford, and L. G. Putnam. 1965. Outbreaks of <u>Campula</u> pellucida (Scudder) (Orthoptera:Acrididae), in relation to native grasslands and ceral crops in Saskatchewan. Can. Ent. 97(5):508-514.
- Riley, C. V., A. S. Packard, Jr., and C. Thomas. 1878. "The Rocky Mountain locust..." First Ann. Rept. U. S. Ent. Comm.
- Scharff, D. K. 1954. The role of food plants and weather in the ecology of Melanoplus mexicanus mexicanus (Sauss.). J. Econ. Ent. 47:485-489.

. 1961. Ecology of the migratory grasshopper (<u>Melanoplus</u> <u>bilaturatus</u>) on Montana grasslands. Unpubl. Ph. D. dissertation. Univ. of Minn., St. Paul, Minn. 164 p.

Shotwell, R. L. 1930. A study of the lesser migratory grasshopper. U. S. Dept. Agr. Tech. Bull. No. 190.

. 1941. Life histories and habits of some grasshoppers of economic importance on the Great Plains. U. S. Dept. Agr. Tech. Bull. 744: 48 p.

. 1953. The use of sprays to control grasshoppers in fallseeded wheat in western Kansas. U. S. Dept. Agr. B. E. P. Q. E-864.

- Smith, D. S. 1959. Utilization of food plants by the migratory grasshopper, <u>Melanoplus bilituratus</u> (Walk.) (OrthopterarAcrididae), with some observations on the nutritional value of the plants. Ann. Ent. Soc. Amer. 52(6):674-680.
- Smith, D. S. and F. E. Northcott. 1951. The effects on the grasshopper, <u>Melanoolus mexicanus mexicanus</u> (Sauss.) (Orthoptera:Acrididae), on varying the nitrogen content of its food plant. Can. J. Zool. 29: 297-304.
- Smith, R. C. 1954. An analysis of 100 years of grasshopper populations in Kansas (1854-1954). Trans. Kans. Acad. Sci. 57:397-433.
- Stevens, O. A. 1950. Handbook of North Dakota Plants. Knight Frinting Co., Fargo, N. Dak. 324 p.
- Stoddard, E. M. 1965. Identifying plants by leaf epidermal characters. Conn. Agr. Exp. Sta. Circ. 227. 9 p.
- Swenk, M. H. and C. H. Bratt. 1941. The relation of temperature to the embryonic and nymphal development of the differential grasshopper <u>Melanoplus differentialis</u> Thos. Nebr. Agr. Exp. Sta. Res. Bull. 122. 24 p.
- Treherne, R. C. and E. R. Buckell. 1924. Grasshoppers of British Columbia. Dom. Dept. Agr. Bull. 39. New series.
- U. S. Department of Commerce. Environmental Science Services Administration. 1957-1966. Climatological data. Environmental Data Service for Kansas. Vol. 71-79.

- Uvarov, B. P. 1928. Locusts and grasshoppers. Imperial Bureau of Entomology. London. 352 p.
- Vestal, A. G. 1913. Local distribution of grasshoppers in relation to plant associations. Biol. Bull. 25:141-180.
- Wilbur, D. A. 1936. Grasshopper injury to the inflorescence of pasture grasses. Kans. Ent. Soc. J. 9:1-12.
- Wilbur, D. A. and R. F. Fritz. 1940. Grasshopper populations in typical pastures in the bluestem region of Kansas. Kans. Ent. Soc. J. 13:86-100.
- Woodruff, L. C. 1937. A grasshopper survey of eastern Kansas. 1936. Kans. Ent. Soc. J. 10:75-83.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Sincere thanks and appreciation is extended to Dr. Herbert Knutson, Professor and Head, Department of Entomology, for advice and guidance during the research and preparation of this thesis.

Sincere thanks are also given to Mr. Clenton Owensby, Instructor, Department of Agronomy, who gave generously of his time and talents in plant identification and establishment of plant abundance ratings.

A special word of thanks is reserved for Dr. John B. Campbell for his invaluable aid during the research problem.

Acknowledgment is extended to Dr. Merlyn A. Brusven, Assistant Professor, University of Idaho, for aiding in the establishment of techniques used in the identification of crop contents and for helping with initial identification of the Acrididae of Kansas.

Appreciation is given to Dr. Gregory B. Mulkern, Associate Professor, North Dakota State University, for his talents and time expended in IEM processing of the research data.

I also wish to thank Dr. Kling L. Anderson, Professor of Pastures and Range Management, Dr. Derrick H. Blocker, Assistant Professor of Entomology and Dr. Lloyd C. Hulbert, Associate Professor of Botany and Plant Pathology for their advice and information during preparation of this manuscript.

Tip neigh support, provided by the Kansas Agricultural Experiment Station Project 5-859 and E. L. D., U. S. D. A. Grant No. 12-14-100-8047(33) is gratefully acknowledged.

My deepest appreciation is given to my wife, Nellie, for her help, encouragement, understanding, and patience. APPENDIX

Table 1. Scientific names^(a)of grasshopper species included in crop analysis studies.

Acridinae

Acceneotettix deorum deorum (Scudder) Boopedon gracile Rehn Boopedon nubilim (Say) Eritettix simplex tricarinatus (Thomas) Mermiria maculicennis macclungi Mermiria neomexicana (Thomas) Opeia obscura (Scudder) Opeia obscura (Scudder) Pseudopomala pracyptera (Scudder) Syrbula admirabilis (Uhler)

Oedipodinae

Arohia conspersa Scudder
Arphia simolex (Scudder)
Arphia xanthoptera (Burneister)
Chortophaga viridifasciata (DeGeer)
Dissosteira carolina (Linneaus)
Encoptolophus sordidus costalis (Scudder)
Hadrotettix trifasciatus (Say)
Hippiscus rugosus Scudder
Pardalophora apiculata (Harris)
Pardaloohora haldemanii (Thomas)

Cyrtacanthacridinae

<u>Campylacantha olivacea olivacea</u> (Scudder) <u>Hesperotettix scecios:</u> 'Scudder) <u>Hesperotettix viridis pratensis</u> Scudder <u>Hesperotettix viridis viridis</u> (Thomas) <u>Malanoplus confusus</u> Scudder <u>Malanoplus differentialis</u> (Thomas) <u>Malanoplus differentialis</u> (Thomas) <u>Malanoplus keeleri luridus</u> (Dodge) <u>Malanoplus cackardij</u> Scudder <u>Malanoplus cackardij</u> Scudder

(a) Following Hebard (1931, 1934) and Coppock (1962).

Table 2. Scientific and common names ^(a) of plants ingested by grasshoppers or found in grasshopper collection sites.

Scientific name	Common name
Perennial Grasses	3
Acropyron smithii Rydb. Androsecon cerardi Vitman Androsecon scoparlus Michx. Bouteloug curtipendula (Michx.) Torr. <u>Bromus inermis Leyss.</u> <u>Chloris verticillata</u> Nutt. <u>Eragrostis spectabilis</u> (Pursh) Steud. <u>Festuca arundinacea</u> Schreb. <u>Panicum scribnerianum</u> Nash <u>Panicum yirgatum L.</u> <u>Phalaris arundinacea</u> L. <u>Poa pratensis L.</u> <u>Schedonnardus paniculatus</u> (Nutt.) Trel. <u>Sconstrum nutans (L.) Nash Spartina petinata Link <u>Sporobolus asper</u> (Michx.) Kunth <u>Sporobolus asper</u> (Michc.) Kurth <u>Sporobolus flavus</u> (L.) Hitchc.</u>	western wheatgrass big bluestem little bluestem sideoats grama smooth brome windmillgrass purple lovegrass tall fescue scribner panicum switchgrass reed canarygrass Kentucky bluegrass tumblegrass prairie cordgrass prairie cordgrass tall dropseed sand dropseed purpletop
Annual Grasses	
<u>Aristida oligantha</u> Michx. <u>Bromus japonicus</u> Thunb. <u>Bromus tectorum L.</u> <u>Digitaria sanouinalis</u> (L.) Scop. <u>Eragrostis cilianensis</u> (All.) Lutati <u>Hordeum pusillum Nutt.</u> <u>Setaria lutescens</u> (Weigel) Hubb. <u>Setaria viridis</u> (L.) Beauv.	prairie threeawm Japanese brome downy brome crabgrass stinkgrass little barley yellow bristlegrass green bristlegrass
Grass-like Plant	5
<u>Carex</u> spp. L. <u>Typha latifolia</u> L.	sedge common cattail
Perennial Forbs	
Achillea millefolium var. lanulosa (Nutt.) Piper <u>Ambrosia psilostachva</u> DC. (<u>A. coronopifolia</u> T. and G.)	western yarrow western ragweed

Table 2. (cont.)

Scientific name	Common name
Perennial Forbs	
Amoelamus albidus (Nutt.) Britt. (<u>Conclobus</u> laevis of manuals, not Michx <u>Antennaria neclecta</u> Green (incl. A. <u>campestis</u> Rydb. and A. <u>loncifolia</u> (Green) <u>Artemesia ludoviciana</u> Nutt. (incl. var. <u>onaoholodes</u> (Nutt.) T. and G.) <u>Asclepias sulivantii</u> Engelm. <u>Asclepias tuberosa L.</u> <u>Asclepiadora viridis</u> (Walt.) Gray (<u>Asclepias</u> v. Walt.) <u>Astracalus carvocarous</u> Ker. (<u>A. Crass- icarpus Nutt.) <u>Callichos involucrata</u> (T. and G.) Gray <u>Convolvulus arvensis L.</u> <u>Desmanthus illinoensis</u> (Michx.) MacM. <u>Helianthus maximiliani</u> Schrad. <u>Kuhnia eupatoroides L.</u> (<u>K. suaveolens</u> Fresin; <u>K. hitchocokii A. Nels.</u>) <u>Lescedeza capitata</u> Michx. <u>Medicaco sativa L.</u> <u>Melilotus alba Desr.</u> <u>Melilotus alba Desr.</u> <u>Melilotus stricta L.</u> <u>Petalostemum multiflorum</u> Nutt.</u>	climbingmilkweed field pussytoes common sagewort sullivant milkweed butterfly milkweed green antelopehorn heath aster groundplum milkvetch purple popymallow bindweed Illinois bundleflower maximilian sunflower falseboneset roundhead lespedeza alfalfa white sweetclover yellow sweetclover yellow sweetclover common yellow oxalis roundheaded prairie- clover groundcherry
<u>Physalis</u> spp. L. <u>Polyconum pensylvanicum</u> L. (incl. <u>P.</u> <u>omissum</u> Greene) <u>Ruellia humilis</u> Nutt. (<u>R. ciliosa</u> , in part; <u>R. carolinionsis</u> , in part.) <u>Rumez criapus</u> L. <u>Sacittaria latifolia</u> Willd. (including <u>S.</u> <u>esculenta Howell</u>) <u>Salvia azurea</u> Lan. var. <u>grandiflora</u> Benth. (<u>S. gitcheri</u> Torr.) <u>Schrankia nuttalli</u> (DC.) Standl. (<u>S. uncinata</u> of manuals, not Willd.) <u>Solidago missouriensis</u> Nutt. (incl. <u>S.</u> <u>olaberrima</u> Martens and <u>S. moritura</u> Steele) <u>Taraxacum officinal</u> Weber (<u>T. vulcare</u> Lam.) <u>Vernonia altissima</u> Nutt. <u>Vernonia baldwini</u> var. <u>baldwini</u> Torr. <u>Verbena stricta</u> Vent.	Pennsylvania smartweed fringeleaf ruellia curled dock common arrowhead pitcher sage catclaw sensitivebriar Missouri goldenrod common dandelion tall ironweed baldwin ironweed woolly vervain

Table 2. (cont.)

Scientific name	Common name
Biennial Forbs	1
<u>Cirsium altissimum</u> (L.) Spreng. <u>Cirsium undulatum</u> (Nutt.) Spreng. <u>Gaura parviflora</u> Dougl. <u>Grindelia scuarrosa</u> (Pursh) Dunal <u>Verbascum thaosus</u> L.	tall thistle wavyleaf thistle smallflower gaura curlycup gumweed flannel mullein
Annual Forbs	
Amaranthus retroflexus L. Ambrosia artemisiifolia L. (A. elatior L.) <u>Chenoodium album L.</u> <u>Conva canadonsis</u> (L.) Cron. (<u>Ericeron c. L.</u> , <u>Leotilon c.</u> (L.) Britt) <u>Groton spp. L.</u> <u>Ericeron stricosus</u> (Muhl.) (<u>E. ramosus</u> (Wait.) <u>Euchorbia spp. L. (incl. Tithymalus</u> (Tourn.) Adans. and <u>Chamaesyce</u> Small) <u>Euchorbia seroens HBK</u> <u>Hibiscus trionum L.</u> <u>Kochia scoparia</u> (L.) Roth <u>Lactuce scariola L. (L. serriola</u> L.; L. <u>cirosa of manuals</u> , not L.) <u>Lepidium densiflorum Schrad.</u> <u>Lespedeza stinulacea</u> Maxim. <u>Solanum carolinense</u> L. <u>Solanum rostratum</u> Dunal Tribulus terrestria L.	rough pigweed common ragweed lambsquarters horseweed Croton daisy fleabane snow-on-the-mountain matforming spurge serpent euphorbia flowerofanhour kochia prickly lettuce peppergrass Korean lespedeza but mightshade puncturevine
Woody Plants	
Amorpha fruticosa L. <u>Ponulus</u> spp. L. <u>Rhus radicans</u> L. (<u>R. toxicocendron</u> , of manuals, in part, not L.)	indigobush amorpha cottonwood poisonivy
Rosa <u>arkańsana</u> Porter var. <u>suffulta</u> (Greene) Cockerell (<u>R. suffulta</u> Greene) <u>Salix</u> spp. L. <u>Sambucus canadensis L.</u>	Arkansas rose willow American elderberry buckbrush

buckbrush wild grape

Symphoricarpos orbiculatus Moench

Vitis vulpina L.

United States Weather Bureau climatological data from the Kansas State University Agronomy Farm recording station, Manhattan, Kansas. Table 3.

Vear		Precipi	tation i	Precipitation in inches				Averac	Average temperature in		oF	
	April	May	June	July	Aug.	Sept.	April	Мау	June	July	.evA	Sept.
1957	3.63	3.74	7.07	3,32	2.02	5.25	49.7	61.31	71.2	81.05	78.45	64.0
1958	1.48	2.17	7.57	12,39	3.91	7.56	50.8	64.85	72.05	74.75	75.85	68.4
1959	1.42	8.30	1.97	2.64	2.58	3.97	51.7	65.6	74.7	74.3	82.1	68.3
1960	2.94	2.77	4.17	5,35	5.76	2.83	55.9	61.8	71.3	75.3	77.2	70.5
1961	2,51	7.28	4.19	3.17	1.76	7.82	48.4	59.3	71.6	6° LL	75.4	63.7
1962	1.14	5.98	4.40	2.86	4.50	4.56	51.0	72.95	71.85	75.85	76.85	64.45
1963	1.47	2.06	2.53	1.15	2.01	2.09	56.4	64.5	77.1	82.1	6. 67	71.6
1964	4.41	2.52	5.12	3.64	3.22	2.03	54.9	68.0	72.1	72.3	74.2	68.6
1965	1.48	1.93	11.27	3.66	2.95	8.47	55.16	69.1	72.2	76.61	76.3	65.11
1966	1.83	1.65	1.62	2.41	3.67	.57	50.2	63.4	73.7	83.5	73.5	66.2
ormal	Normals(a)2.65	4.49	5.09	3.65	4.26	3.64	55.7	64.8	75.6	81.2	79.67	70.8

(a)Normals are climatological standard normals based on the 1931-1960 period.

FOOD PLANT PREFERENCES OF GRASSHOPPERS (ORTHOPTERA: ACRIDIDAE) OF SELECTED PLANTED PASTURES IN EASTERN KANSAS

by

JAMES DALE LAMELEY

B. S., Kansas State University, Manhattan, 1965

AN ABSTRACT OF A MASTER'S THESIS

submitted in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree

MASTER OF SCIENCE

Department of Entomology

KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY Manhattan, Kansas

ABSTRACT

An investigation to determine the feeding and behavioral habits of grasshoppers in planted (tame) pastures of eastern Kansas was conducted during the frost-free seasons of 1965 and 1966. Emphasis was placed on the food preferences of the more common grasshopper species.

Grasshopper collection sites were selected primarily with regard to vegetation type; each consisting of one or more planted forage species not native to eastern Kansas. Collection sites selected were of (1) western wheatgrass (<u>Acropyron smithii</u>)-Korean lespedeza (<u>Lespedeza stipulacea</u>), (2) smooth brome (<u>Bromus inermis</u>)-sweetclover (<u>Medicaoo</u> spp.), (3) Kentucky bluegrass (<u>Poa pratensis</u>), (4) overgrazed smooth brome, (5) moderately grazed smooth brome, and (6) reed canarygrass (<u>Phalaris arundinacea</u>)-smooth brome.

Plant species making up the vegetation of each site were identified and given a numerical relative abundance rating. Such ratings denoted both numbers and relative availability of a plant species to the grasshopper.

Grasshopper collections were made at weekly intervals at each collection site throughout the growing season.

Grasshopper food ingestions were determined by analysis of the crop contents. Findings were then I. B. M. data-processed and data were converted to tabular form giving: the total number of specimens of each life stage of a grasshopper species collected per site; percentage of the total numbers of each specific life stage of a grasshopper species having ingested a particular plant species in each site; percentage of each life stage with empty crops or with pollen, fungus, or arthropod parts ingested. Also, each species was given a grass-forb index number obtained by subtracting the

total percent of individuals of a species ingesting grasses from the total percent ingesting forbs. Grasshopper species whose ratings were 100 to 76 were classified as forb feeders; 75 to 26, mixed feeders preferring forbs; 25 to -25, mixed feeders; -26 to -75, mixed feeders preferring grasses, and: -76 to -100, grass feeders.

Crop content analyses indicated that grasshoppers, in general, are selective in their choice of food plants; the degree of selectivity varying with the grasshopper species. No significant changes in food plant preferences during various stages of the life cycles of the species studied were noted. Most Acridinae species were classified as grass feeders; grass ingestion percentages often ranking closely with relative abundance of grass species present. Cedipodinae species were normally classed as grass feeders or mixed feeders preferring grasses. Cyrtacanthacridinae species had more diverse feeding habits, but were usually classed as forb feeders, mixed feeders, or mixed feeders preferring forbs.

Some grasshopper species showed definite preferences for a particular planted pasture habitat, being found only or most abundantly at collection sites where the preferred food plant was available.

Fungus and arthropod parts were commonly found in the grasshopper crops; the ingestion rates varying with the grasshopper species. Ingestions of these materials greatly increased during the drought period of 1966.

A high percentage of first and second instar grasshoppers had empty crops as did the males of several species. The numbers of specimens with empty crops increased greatly during the drought period of 1966.